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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®/RE

The COVID-19 outbreak has continued to devastate the
economic in the past year and with various COVID-19 prevention
measures, such as operating hour restrictions across various
industries and social distance measures. As a result, the
Group's lifestyle entertainment segment was under significant
pressure and its revenue contribution recorded a decrease of
approximately HK$37.8 million from HK$52.0 million in the last
financial year to HK$14.2 million in the financial year ended
31 March 2021. While the Group's lifestyle entertainment
segment was halted by COVID-19 outbreak, the Group's
property management segment remained stable this year
Revenue contribution from Ningbo AUX Property Management
Service Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX") was approximately HK$288.7
million in the current year compared to HK$288.0 million in the
financial year ended 31 March 2020. As a result, the Group's
total revenue recorded decrease of approximately 10.9% from
HK$340.0 million last year to HK$302.9 million this year.

Ningbo AUX continued to improve its brand reputation in the
market and was awarded 2021 China's Top 100 Best Property
Management Service Companies and 2021 China Outstanding
Hospital Property Management in April 2021. Ningbo AUX
continued to optimise its project portfolio to focus on projects
with larger service area. As a result, the number of projects
managed by the Group as at 31 March 2021 had decreased
from 64 projects to 63 projects while aggregate contracted
gross floor area increased from 7.19 million square meters to
7.62 million square meters (“sq.m.”).

Despite that the Group's property rentals and related expenses
has decreased by HK$5.5 million due to rent deduction by
landlords of the Group's restaurant and bar outlets and
club, the COVID-19 outbreak continued to affect the Group's
performance this year. The Group's life entertainment segment
recorded decrease in revenue of HK$37.8 million, impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$7.3 million and the impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of HK$11.5 million in the Group's
lifestyle entertainment segment.

In addition, the Group incurred net exchange loss of HK$6.1
million under the RMB-denominated loan from major

shareholder.

As a result, profit before taxation of the Group has decreased
from HK$29.2 million last year to HK$7.1 million this year.
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Chairman’s Statement
ITE®/RE

OUTLOOK

The Group's property management business has been a
consistent contributor to the Group ever since the Group
acquired Ningbo AUX in 2017. Recognised by the market,
Ningbo AUX was ranked 32nd among the 2021 China’s Top 100
Best Property Management Service Companies in April 2021
and awarded the Management Excellence in Hospital Premises
China 2021 award in the same month. As Ningbo AUX builds its
reputation in hospital property management, the Group expects
hospital property management projects will be one of the key
growth drivers in the future. Building on its current strength, the
Group will seek to establish brand awareness in other types of
property such as industrial parks.

With the COVID-19 outbreak gradually subsiding in Hong
Kong at the time of this report, the Group expects it will take
another 6 to 12 months before the economy be able to fully
recover to pre-COVID-19 status. Experience gained from the
challenges in the past years fortified the Group's belief that
the products and services offered by its lifestyle entertainment
segment are essential to its customers. The Group believes that
the business environment will continue to improve within the
next 12 months. To ensure the Group can capture this wave
of economic recovery, the Group will continue to improve its
service quality and dedicated to provide customer-oriented
product and service offered in the lifestyle entertainment
segment to improve its brand awareness.

The Group will seek opportunity to expand its scale in its
lifestyle entertainment segment through expansion of current
services and products, introduction of new brands, acquisition
and co-operation with other brands.

When suitable opportunities arise, the Group will not preclude
the possibilities of pursuing suitable investment opportunities
in e-commerce, internet information technology and other
emerging industries in order to expand into different income
sources.
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Chairman’s Statement
IRBE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board, | would like to thank my fellow
directors, the management and all staff for their hard work and
contribution to the development of the Group in the past year.
| would also like to express appreciation to all shareholders and
business partners for their constant trust and support to the
Group.

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has
been principally engaged in the operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets in Hong Kong (the
"lifestyle entertainment segment”) and provision of property
management services in the PRC (the “"property management
segment”).

Business review — lifestyle entertainment segment

The Group currently owns Zentral, a club in Central (the “Club”),
and two restaurant and bar outlets across Causeway Bay and
Mongkok under the brand of “Mini Club”.

Business review — property management segment

The Group positions itself as a complex property management
service provider and provides complete services to various
type of properties, including medium to high-end residential
properties and non-residential properties such as A-class office
buildings, commercial complexes, hospitals and industrial parks.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group managed 63 projects with
a total gross floor area of approximately 7.62 million square
meters.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$302.9 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.9% as compared with approximately HK$340.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to the Group's bar and restaurants and
clubs being temporarily closed or operating under restriction
according to relevant COVID-19 prevention policies. In the
financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s bar and
club venue had been ordered to close in accordance with
the COVID-19 prevention policies only been in approximately
230 days. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the lifestyle
entertainment segment recorded revenue of HK$14.2 million
compared to HK$52.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

Staff Costs

The staff costs comprise salaries, wages, discretionary bonuses,
membership commissions, tips from customers allocated to
staff and other benefits including retirement benefit costs and
other allowances and benefits payable to permanent and part
time staff. The staff costs decreased by approximately 16.8% or
HK$26.2 million to approximately HK$129.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 from approximately HK$156.1 million for
the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease in staff costs incurred from the property management
segment of HK$16.3 million as a result of decrease in average
number of staff and decrease in social security expenses under
the PRC Government's temporary social security reduction
policy and decrease in staff costs of HK$9.8 million due to
decrease in sales commission in the lifestyle entertainment
segment.

Property Rentals and Related Expense

The property rentals and related expenses consist of short term
lease payments and management fee under operating leases
for the restaurant and bar outlets, the Club and the Group's
headquarters. The property rentals and related expenses
decreased by approximately 58.5% or HK$5.5 million to
approximately HK$3.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2021
from approximately HK$9.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2020. Such decrease was mainly due to capitalisation of lease
payments for Zentral, which is depreciated over the remaining
lease term upon the renewal of tenancy agreement in August
2019 under HKFRS 16.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses

The advertising and marketing expenses primarily consist of
advertising and promotional expenses, such as the cost of
inviting international disc jockeys to the Club. The advertising
and marketing expenses decreased by approximately 69.0%
or HK$2.9 million to approximately HK$1.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 from approximately HK$4.2 million for
the year ended 31 March 2020. Such decrease was mainly due
to decrease in promotion activities of the Club as the Group
has temporarily scaled down its marketing activities under the
COVID-19 prevention restriction on its operation.

Utilities Expenses and Repair and Maintenance Expenses
The utilities expenses and repair and maintenance expenses
decreased by approximately HK$3.6 million or 12.2% for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in expenses incurred of the property management
business as a result of termination of one of the commercial
complex management projects during the year.

BIRA
BEIXRABEHFE T4 BWSHEL =&/
¢ PETFEIXRERFPHMNNEREMBET -
HERaERKREHKANRESN TR RFR
BEIMEMEUEREN BEIXNAREEZT
—EF=-A=+—HULEFENSIEEE TR
L4916.8% (K26 2B BB L) EBE_T_—F
A=+ —HIEFENIBEEE T - BIEE
ZHNFHEIHER D - L RERBEEATES
BHERBEEET ARESRLEDESE
DEEEMEIR AR I6IBEBT UK
BTIRAREFRES BHOHEEME R L MR
LOSEER T

MEHREREBAX
WEEEMEERAXERERNEEMT &
FIARASBEATREBEEXZHOMENZE
HHESLEERE YEHSLEBERAXHEE
TECTF=-A=T—HILFENIBEEET
L #58.5% (55 BB T EBE-_T ——
FZA=T—"HLFELRIAELET - BHRE
BEIZHRREEZEMBERELENF165 - R
“E-NFN\ABREEW AR E Zentral 9
T (EREMAERRGzZEBTE) ETER
(

EEREHEMX
EEREHAXIEARESLREER  f
MBFEERERROERMEMBENER -
EEREHAXHBE-_T_FTF=A=1—
HIEFEH42B 8B TR K69.0% (22988
BLEBE_T_—F=A=+—-HIFELD
13AEBTT - BHEREEEX T M AR
RFFEMERROERELTS  EREMEEE
B e

KEBREBCREERX
BE_Z-_—F=-A=Z=+—HILFE KEB
AR R HEER R D 43.68 &8 o (3
122%) c ZRBEREZEHNREF —EBEEFE
BEEBFANERIERBEEMEEEERESE
SR -

Annual Report 2021 4 #§ 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses remained stable at approximately
HK$35.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
approximately HK$33.8 million). Such expenses include
gardening costs, security costs and other miscellaneous
expenses.

Results for the Year

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$8.6 million, as compared with the Group's
profit of approximately HK$13.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2020. The downturn from profit to loss for the
year was mainly due to the decrease in revenue of HK$37.1
million, incurred net exchange loss of HK$6.1 million and
increase in impairment losses on goodwill and property, plant
and equipment of HK$16.9 million. The Group has endured
impairment loss on goodwill and property, plant and equipment
of HK$7.3 million and HK$11.5 million respectively as a result of
the negative impact of COVID-19 towards the restaurant and
bar outlets and the Club, respectively.

LIQUIDITY,
GEARING

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$324.5 million (31 March
2020: approximately HK$302.6 million) and approximately
HK$202.4 million (31 March 2020: approximately HK$177.8
million) respectively, while the current ratio was about 1.6 times
(31 March 2020: 1.7 times).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group maintained cash at bank and
in hand of approximately HK$227.2 million (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$206.7 million). In the foreseeable future, the
Group expects to fund its capital expenditures, working capital
and other capital requirements from cash generated from its
operations and other financing means which the Company may
from time to time consider appropriate.

Total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31 March
2021 was approximately HK$108.3 million (31 March 2020:
HK$131.3 million), which was mainly represented by the loan
of RMB100 million, of which a principal amount of RMB73
million was outstanding as at 31 March 2021, with a term of
five years at an interest rate of 2% per annum granted by
the controlling shareholder of the Company to Starry Chance
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
for the purpose of financing its acquisition of the entire equity
interests in Ningbo AUX. The gearing ratio, which is calculated
by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity, as
at 31 March 2021 was 0.80 (31 March 2020: 1.02).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Chung Sun Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed
to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis,
a maximum of 60,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
"Subscription Shares”) under the general mandate granted
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on
19 August 2016 to not less than six placees who are professional,
institutional or other investors and who and whose ultimate
beneficial owners were third parties independent of and not
connected with the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) at a placing price of HK$0.91 per
Subscription Share (the “Placing”). The Directors considered
that it was in the interests of the Company to raise capital
from the equity market in order to enhance the capital base of
the Company. The market price of the shares of the Company
was HK$1.11 per share on 10 July 2017, being the date of the
placing agreement and the date on which the terms of the
Placing were fixed. All the conditions set out in the placing
agreement had been fulfilled subsequently and the Placing
was completed on 2 August 2017 in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement. The gross and net
proceeds raised from the Placing were approximately HK$54.6
million and HK$54.1 million respectively, which were intended
to be applied for supplementing the Group's working capital
and for financing potential investments or acquisitions should
suitable opportunities arise. The net price to the Company
of each Subscription Share was approximately HK$0.90. As at
the date of this annual report, all HK$54.1 million of the net
proceeds raised from the Placing had been used to supplement
the Group's working capital.

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through maintaining the equity and debt in a
balanced position.

As at 31 March 2021, the capital structure of the Group consists
of equity of approximately HK$135.7 million (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$128.4 million) and loan from the controlling
shareholder of approximately HK$85.3 million (31 March 2020:
HK$109.2 million). Except for the loan from the controlling
shareholder and lease liabilities, the Group had no interest-
bearing bank borrowings, debt securities or other capital
instruments as at 31 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINT VENTURES AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures or
significant investments held during the year ended 31 March
2021.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any pledged assets
(31 March 2020: Nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to conduct more in-depth reviews on the
suitable development strategies for the Group, including the
feasibility of diversifying the income stream of the Group by
exploring different business and investment opportunities in
different business areas such as trading, property management,
healthcare, internet information technology and other emerging
industries, which may or may not include any assets and/
or business acquisitions or disposals by the Group, and will
consider all options. Any such plans will be subject to review
and approval by the Board and compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules where appropriate. The
costs of such acquisitions will be met with cash generated from
the operations of the Group and other financing means which
the Group may consider appropriate from time to time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
is exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from Renminbi
("RMB"). Foreign exchange risks arise from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
RMB for the entities with a functional currency in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group did not use any forward contracts to hedge
its foreign currency exposure during the year. The Group will
from time to time review and adjust its hedging and financial
strategies based on exchange rate movements in RMB and
Hong Kong dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENREDN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed approximately
1,077 employees (31 March 2020: 1,304 employees). The Group
offers competitive remuneration packages to its staff, including
share option scheme, mandatory provident fund scheme and
discretionary bonus.

PROSPECTS

The Group expects that Hong Kong will begin to recover from
the negative impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and that the
Group's lifestyle entertainment segment will largely benefit from
the recovery. As the future looks promising, the Group expects
to devote more resources to the lifestyle entertainment segment
through introduction of brand peripheral products and services
to enhance its income source.

At the same time, the Group continues to enhance its brand
image as one of the most reputable hospital property
manager and rebalance its property development segment’s
management portfolio to include projects such as industrial
parks.

While business of its lifestyle entertainment segment improves,
the Group believes that the strong performance of its property
management segment will be properly reflected in the Group's
overall result. The Group will continue to enhance its balanced
earning portfolio, review its business performance regularly, and
identify favourable investment opportunities.

Lifestyle entertainment segment

With the COVID-19 outbreak gradually subsiding, the Group
believes that the demand of its restaurant and bar outlets will
surge and with the resurgence of Zentral, as one of the landmark
attractions in Lan Kwai Fong, the Group will greatly benefit from
the revenge-spending expected by the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBHWESN

Property management segment

The Group's property management segment has continued to
increase its contracted gross floor area. Dedicated to continue
its expansion, the Group will focus on building its brand
reputation as a reliable property management service provider
of hospital premises and expand its property management
service portfolio in other categories of premises such as
industrial park premises.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEZGHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Jiang (#85T), aged 56, is the chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company and has joined
the Group since May 2015. He is currently a director and
deputy chairman of AUX Group, a China Top-500 enterprise
with business operations in multiple industries, primarily in
air conditioner manufacturing, power equipment, healthcare
and finance. He had been a director and the deputy chairman
of Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. (EF =2 BF
BREDER AT, a Chinese electrical meter manufacturer
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601567)
("Ningbo Sanxing Medical”), since its listing on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in June 2011 until March 2014 when he vacated
such offices by rotation. He has over 25 years of experience in
corporate management. He is a brother of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the sole
legal and beneficial owner and sole director of Ze Hong Limited,
which legally and beneficially owns 10% of the issued share
capital of Huiri Limited, which in turn is interested in 219,950,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 58.66% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (FR#H), aged 43, is the executive Director,
chief executive officer and a joint company secretary of the
Company and has joined the Group since May 2015. He holds a
bachelor's degree in commerce from University of Canterbury,
New Zealand. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chan has over 16 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. He has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of Wah Ho Holdings Group Ltd (stock code:
9938) since December 2019 and was an independent non-
executive director of Chen Lin Education Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1593) from November 2019 to June 2021.
All the above are companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEBCHE

Mr. Liang Songluan (&%), aged 37, is the executive Director
of the Company and has joined the Group since October
2020. He is currently the chief officer of the legal and audit
department of AUX Group Co., Ltd* (R R EBEBRAF]), a
conglomerate with business in manufacturing of electrical and
household appliance, health care and finance investment and
which owns and maintains a number of offices and car park
units in different cities in the PRC. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in accountancy from Heilongjiang University. He is a senior
accountant (B4 & 5TAM) in the PRC. He has been a director of
Ningbo Sanxing Medical and Electric Co., Ltd* (B ) = 2 8 &
BERAMWH AR AT, a Chinese solution provider of intelligent
power distribution and utilisation systems listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601567), since June 2020. He has
over 12 years' experience in finance management.

Ms. Shen Guoying (JLElZ), aged 50, is the executive Director
of the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015. She
is currently the CEO in healthcare of Ningbo AUX Healthcare
Group Co., Ltd, and a director of Ningbo Sanxing Medical. She
holds a bachelor's degree in accountancy awarded jointly by
The Open University of China (& & #& 1R K 2) and Beijing
Technology and Business University (It R Ti§K&). She is a
senior accountant (& & & 5 60) in the PRC. She has over 26
years of experience in finance management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEBCHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (B E]), aged 59, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director, vice
president and the company secretary of Huabao International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 336). Mr. Poon was awarded the
postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of London. He
holds a master's degree in international accounting, bachelor’s
degree in laws and a bachelor’s degree in business studies.
He is a fellow of CPA Australia Ltd., the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute, a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, and a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member of its
Technical Consultation Panel, Mainland China Focus Group
and Audit Committee. Mr. Poon has years of experience in
finance, compliance, and listed companies management. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Sunac China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1918), Yuanda China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2789), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1292), Sany Heavy Equipment International
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 631), Greentown
Service Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2869), Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd. (stock code: 2362), Honghua
Group Limited (stock code: 196) and Yanzhou Coal Mining
Company Limited (stock code: 1171). During the three years
preceding the date of this report, Mr. Poon had served as a non-
executive director of Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1609). He was an independent non-executive director of
Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (stock code: 1249) and TUS
International Limited (stock code: 872) from July 2013 to March
2021 and from September 2015 to July 2020, respectively. All
the above are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (ff8/N8), aged 54, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company and has joined the Group
since May 2015. He was an executive director, chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Chen Lin Education Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593) from September 2018
to May 2021. Mr. Bau holds a bachelor’'s degree in Business
Administration in Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has more
than 19 years of experience in accounting and auditing field.
Mr. Bau is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Bau was appointed on 22 June 2018 as
an independent non-executive director of FSM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1721). All of the above are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREERZEE

Ms. Lou Aidong (ZXEX), aged 55, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. She is currently a partner of Beijing
Kangda Law Firm (Jt R M EEZEEA EHFT). She holds a
bachelor’'s degree in law from the Peking University (3t 3K
2). Ms. Lou is a qualified attorney in the PRC and has over
29 years of experience in the legal profession. From May 2008
to April 2010, she was a member of Public Offering Review
Committee (E1TEZZEE) of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (PHBASEEBTEEE®). She served as an
independent director of two companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, namely Guangdong Hongda Blasting Co.,
Ltd. (ER A KRKEWRDER AT (stock code: 002683), from
December 2010 to December 2016, and Jiangsu Nata Opto—
electronic Material Co., Ltd. (T & B AKX BEMERHER R
(stock code: 300346), from October 2010 to June 2017. She has
been an independent director of Yunnan Metropolitan Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (EEMEEERMHER QA
(stock code: 600239), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, since December 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEXERHSE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed to
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate
image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March
2021.

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic
decisions to the Group's activities and oversees its financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group's daily management and operations.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors possessed the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise, which
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the number
of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong
independent element in the Board, which effectively exercised
independent judgement.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
(appointed as the chairman with effect from 24 July 2020)

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Mr. Liang Songluan
(appointed with effect from 30 October 2020)

Ms. Shen Guoying

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
(resigned as the chairman and re-designated as a
non-executive director with effect from 24 July 2020;
resigned with effect from 30 October 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

The brief biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 17 to 20.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Directors, a written confirmation of his or her
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has arranged
trainings for Directors in the form of seminars and provision
of training materials. All Directors have provided their training
records to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERERE

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March
2021 is as follows:

BRETERANDE EFRE_T_—F=
B=+—BILEEEEMEIESMT:

Attended seminars

HEME
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zheng Jiang BTk E v
Mr. Chan Hon Ki BRIZH % A& v
Mr. Liang Songluan R& St N
Ms. Shen Guoying M e N
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok & BR B 5t A v
Mr. Bau Siu Fung f/NG %k E v
Ms. Lou Aidong EFRZ+ V

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held separately.
The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Zheng Jiang (with effect
from 24 July 2020) and Mr. Zhang Jingguo (resigned with effect
from 24 July 2020), and the role of Chief Executive Officer
was held by Mr. Chan Hon Ki. The Chairman is responsible for
the leadership and governance for the Board while the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day management of
the Group's business.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

The service contracts of Mr. Zheng Jiang, Mr. Chan Hon Ki
and Ms. Shen Guoying all have an initial term of three years
with effect from 15 May 2015. The service contract of Mr. Liang
Songluan has an initial term of three years is commencing
from 30 October 2020. These contracts shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated by him or her
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to him or her.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

Each of the current independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed to the Board for an initial term of three years
commencing from 15 May 2015 which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then current term until terminated either by him
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring
at the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring at the first
anniversary of the initial term of his appointment or any time
thereafter to him or her.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the Company’s Articles
of Association. The appointment of each of the Directors is
subject to his re-election at an annual general meeting upon
retirement. The Company’s Articles of Association provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not 3 or a
multiple of 3, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Liang Songluan shall cease to hold office while
Mr. Bau Siu Fung and Ms. Lou Aidong shall retire by rotation
at the annual general meeting. All of the above Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the same
meeting.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times
a year.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions and he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the
Board meeting discussing the matter concerned.

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each of the
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Directors at the Board and committee meetings of the Company A=+ —HIEFEMRITHNESSEREZEE
held during the year ended 31 March 2021: EEHE RS
Attendance to meetings HEER
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
W/ BTEERY
Regular Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee  Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHEEE ENRZEE REZEE FMZEEE RREF
Exps f 23 S - VS-
Executive Directors HOES
Mr. Zhang Jingguo (re-designated as REALE(FE-F
a non-executive director with effect tAZTHEEF &
from 24 July 2020 and resigned with ZRINTEE WA
effect from 30 July 2020) ZE-FFLA=FH
EE ) 34 NATER NATER 1/1 /1
Mr. Zheng Jiang B IkE 44 N/ATER NATER 1/1 171
Mr. Chan Hon Ki RERLE 44 NATER NATER 1/1 /1
Mr. Liang Songluan (appointed with effect REHEE(F=F=FF
from 30 October 2020) FA=F+HEEZT) 14 N/A T iE B 111 NATER NATER
Ms. Shen Guoying BB 44 N/A TEE 171 N/ARNE A 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTEE
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERELE 4/4 4/4 N N 71
Mr. Bau Siu Fung ek 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 171
Ms. Lou Aidong EFRLT 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 171
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GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2021 is scheduled to be held on 23 August 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All
the Board committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 January 2014 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. For the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, namely Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok and Ms. Lou Aidong, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control,
compliance and risk management systems of the Group; (ii)
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii) developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under
the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to the employees and Directors.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out as follows:

o Reviewed with the senior management and finance-
in-charge and/or the external auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the
accuracy and fairness of the annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and interim financial report
for the six months ended 30 September 2020 respectively;

. Met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and

findings relating to the annual audit for the year ended 31
March 2020 and the effectiveness of the audit process;
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J Reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

J Conducted annual review of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2020;

o Approved the internal audit plan for the year ended 31
March 2021 and internal audit report for the year ended
31 March 2020;

o Reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved
the engagement of external auditors and recommended
to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors;

o Reviewed the financial reporting and compliance

procedures and the report from the management on the

Company'’s internal control systems and processes; and

° Noted the new requirements on the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under the Listing Rules
and highlighted the amendments under the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report of
the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Function

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report; and (ii) reviewed and monitored
the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 January 2014,
with specific written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination
Committee comprised a total of five members, being two
executive directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman) and Ms.
Shen Guoying, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Bau Siu Fung and Ms. Lou
Aidong. Accordingly, a majority of the members were and
continue to be independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2021 is set
out as follows:

° Reviewed and discussed on the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements for the business of the
Group and that it is in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

o Make recommendation to the Board for appointments of
Mr. Liang Songluan and re-election of existing directors.

The recommendations on director appointment and re-
election were made in accordance with the Company’s
policy for nomination of Directors and took into account the
diversity aspects (including, without limitation, age, cultural
and educational background, professional expertise and
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) under the
board diversity policy. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Board Diversity Policy” in this Corporate Governance
Report. In particular, the Nomination Committee had taken into
consideration the perspectives, skills and experience that Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok could bring to the Board as an independent
non-executive Director, including without limitation his extensive
experience in finance, compliance, and listed companies
management.

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok is holding directorships in more than
seven listed companies as at the Latest Practicable Date.
As an independent non-executive director of each of these
companies, he is not involved in the day-to-day operations
and management of the businesses of such companies. Mr.
Poon has annually disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in listed companies and other significant
commitments. As a professional, he is competent in time
management and has sound knowledge and skills to effectively
discharge his duties in those positions. The Board considers that
Mr. Poon is able to devote sufficient time to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Remuneration Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang and
Mr. Chan Hon Ki, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairwoman), Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok and Mr. Bau Siu Fung. Accordingly, a majority of the
members were and continue to be independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior management.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out as
follows:

° Assessed performance of executive Directors;

J Reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company; and

recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages (including discretionary bonus) of
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

. Reviewed and

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Under
the policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition
to educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard to the benefits
of diversity for the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
Directors.

Number of Directors EE 85
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the remunerations paid
or payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services provided to the Group were
approximately HK$2,706,000 and HK$26,000, respectively. The
amount for non-audit services comprised the tax compliance
services for the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN RESPECT OF

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2021. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 88 to 95.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual review of both design and implementation
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to
ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In
this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material
issues to the Board.
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During the Year, the Group appointed BT Corporate Governance
Limited (formerly known as Corporate Governance Professionals
Limited) ("BTCG") to:

J assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCG to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations of BTCG as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal control
mechanism includes information flow and reporting processes,
confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures, and staff
training arrangements, etc.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are
maintained, management is responsible for designing and
implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds of
risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
Our risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit
Committee, which oversees risk management and internal audit
functions.
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OUR RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by BTCG. The Group maintains a risk register
to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The
risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and
management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The
risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they
can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of
the Group's risk management framework will be evaluated at
least annually, and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet
its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit function.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

The joint company secretaries of the Group are Ms. Tsang Kwok
Shan Sandy and Mr. Chan Hon Ki. Each of Ms. Tsang and Mr.
Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2021.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which
took effect from January 2014. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
will take into account the Company’s future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors which
the Directors deem relevant such as the prevailing market
conditions and global economic situation.

The dividend payout ratio would be calculated based on certain
per cent of the net profit recorded during the financial year, with
a view to retaining sufficient funds and capital for operational
uses and future investment opportunities and ensuring that all
possible acquisitions could be properly financed. The dividend
policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restriction under
the laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company shall be
held each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board.
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Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
("EGM")

Pursuant to the Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary at the headquarters of the Company in
Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 1, 10/F., Emperor
Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for
the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and signed by the requisitionist(s). The request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request has been verified
not in order, the Shareholders will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company
for the attention of the company secretary at the Company'’s
headquarters in Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders
at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
"Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
DOCUMENTS

IN CONSTITUTIONAL

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

AUX International Holdings Limited ("AUX") and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”, “we", "our” or "us”) are committed to providing
high-quality services, and to maintain its pioneering position of
both the private club entertainment business in Hong Kong as
well as property management business in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") as the Group's vision and mission. The
Group is committed to be a responsible corporate institution.
While making great effort to achieve its corporate goals, the
Group also hopes to seek benefits for the society in order to
achieve sustainable development of all aspects.

In view of this, this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report will focus on the balance between three aspects:
corporate needs, social needs and environmental concerns. The
Group understands that including the elements of sustainable
development into corporate strategies has now become a trend.
We will communicate with different stakeholders actively in
order to understand the needs of all parties, and to manage
the ESG issue in a comprehensive way. The Group will consider
relevant short-term and long-term factors while implementing
the plan of sustainable development, which includes the
challenges we are facing, responsibilities to stakeholders, global
trends, regulations and risk management, etc. We believe that
in today’s constantly changing business environment, a company
must take its responsibility on to ESG issues in the long run in
order to succeed.

Through careful and in-depth understandings on the risks and
opportunities of ESG issues the Group is facing, the Group will
actively fulfil its corporate social responsibilities, abiding local
laws, providing suitable working environment for the employees,
and would also pay attention to social issues including
responsible procurement, avoiding drug abuse, environmental
protection, volunteer activities, etc. We will also contribute to
environmental protection starting from waste reduction. As a
part of the society, the Group will strive to contribute to the
society and work together to create a better environment in the
community.

Lastly, regarding the Group’s policy and performance on the
four major categories of environmental protection, employment
and labour practices, operation practices and community
participation from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, the Board of
Directors are pleased to present the 2020/2021 ESG report of
the Group.
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

About the Report

This report introduces the Group's significant ESG performance
in the 2020/2021 fiscal year, and its long-term commitments
to ESG. This Report mainly focuses on the Group's two main
businesses, including the operation of clubbing business in
Hong Kong and the provision of property management services
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), and describes the
progress of the Group in creating sustainable values for its
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Reporting Range and Boundary

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This Report summarises
the ESG practices of the two operation units, namely AUX
International Holdings Limited (the "AUX") and Ningbo AUX
Property Management Service Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo AUX"). The
information contained herein is helpful to know about and
evaluate the Group's ESG performance in routine business in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

In addition to internal factors, such as the corporate
value, strategy and core competence, the Group has also
communicated with the internal and external stakeholders on
a regular basis, and considered the ESG strategies of other
industries, so as to achieve sustainable development. The Group
has identified the following categories that have or maybe have
a significant impact on the Group’s ESG performance:

o Clubbing and entertainment industry in Hong Kong;

o Property service industry in the PRC;

o Property management market in the PRC;

o Present or future environment and society;

o Financial performance or operation of the Group; and

° Evaluation, decision and action of the Group’s

stakeholders.

In preparing this report, the Group has adopted some global
and local industry standards or best practices, including the
ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange and the applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards of Hong Kong.

The Group has covered the critical issues concerned by different
stakeholder groups through continuous communication with the
stakeholders. We welcome opinions and suggestions for ESG
performance of the Group, which can be sent to the Group's
email address: info@auxint.com.
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ABOUT AUX
LIMITED

INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

Business of the Group

AUX International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2080) and
its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in clubbing businesses in
Hong Kong and property management services in the PRC.
For the clubbing and entertainment business of the Group,
it owns and operates club and restaurant and bar outlet in
Hong Kong, namely Zentral and Mini Club with a total area of
over 20 thousand sq. ft., providing services including private
parties, corporate events, live entertainment, fashion shows,
jewelry fair, filming location and film premiere. For the Group's
property management business in the PRC, the headquarter is
located in Ningbo, offering property management services in
13 cities, namely, Shanghai, Ningbo, Tianjin, Nanjing, Hangzhou,
Nanchang, Changsha, Jiujiang, Zhengzhou, Chengdu, Huzhou,
Qingdao and Maanshan', that providing specialised property
management services for commercial areas, residential areas,
villas, office buildings, industrial areas, etc. The property
management business provides comprehensive services for
various property types, with main focus on residential properties
and covering non-residential properties such as Class A office
buildings, shopping malls, medium and high-end residential
buildings, hospitals and industrial parks.

Vision

To be a leader in clubbing and entertainment business, steadily
carry out property management businesses, maintain high
quality services, so as to develop AUX into a world brand and
provide the maximum sustainable value for stakeholders.

Mission
Enhance customer experience to attract more club patrons,
create and lead the intelligent life, and cultivate excellent
talents.

Goal

Dedicated to improving the quality of clubbing and
entertainment services as well as property management
services.

As the management of residential estates in Zhengzhou and Maanshan are
provided to the management of property sales office, and no “Environmental”
data in relation to the Group have been generated, the “Environmental”

section of this Report will not cover relevant districts.
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The Board

A W&

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises the following

Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Ms. Shen Guoying
Mr. Liang Songluan

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Bau Siu Fung
Ms. Lou Aidong

PARTICIPATION OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively seeks every opportunity to understand our
stakeholders, and guarantees the regular improvement of our

services. We firmly believe that our stakeholders play a vital role
in maintaining the success of our business.

E=xg
HEAREHLA EFGKERE:

HTES BUKNTES
BT () B R o
R A N
LB R L+ BEERLT
REE R

BRENSR

AEEEGESK-—UTREAMBOHEOKS -
BRRMANRBEI EHSE - RFIRE T
M NEEEFRMAXZFEORNN T EEES
FAEZMER -

Stakeholders

Issues Concerned

Communications & Feedbacks

B & LR £ BREAEER
HKEx Compliance with the listing rules, and timely & accurate Meeting, training, website update and announcement
announcement
ERREM BRETHRY REEERODE BE B BREHRNQE
Government Compliance with laws and regulations, prevention against ~ Government inspection, tax declaration and other
tax evasion, and social welfare information
B EREERNEST NI HMEERF BRRE  HBRBRRMEMES
Suppliers Payment schedule and demand stability Business communication, purchase agreement, e-mail and
telephone connection
HES NARERE  FREE ¥RER RBALH EFBAREEREZE
Investors Corporate governance system, business strategy and Organising and participating in seminars, shareholders’
performance, and investment return meeting, issuing financial reports and other
announcements
REE DRERER EBRBAEYR REDR HRNZ2ERTE BRRAE BHUBREREMAE

Media and Public
BREAR
Customers

BE

Employees

8T

Community

T+ E

Corporate governance, environmental protection, and
human rights
NRIER  RRRE AR

Service quality, reasonable price, service values, employee
protection and working safety

RBEE BREE REEE SIRFREMN
IR

Interests and welfare, employee remuneration, training and
development, working hours, working environment
BEMEN BIHM HIIEER-
TR THEERER

Community environment, employment and community
development, social welfare

HERE RENLRER  HEEF

Publishing newsletters on the corporate website
NI Rl i
Field investigation, after-sales services

REER  ERIRHB

Training, interview with employees, internal memos,
employee's suggestion box

Bl BTIm# AEESE BTEREE

Community development activities, volunteering activities of
employees, community welfare subsidy and donation

HEREREY BEIZTAPNLEEFHENER
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ENVIRONMENTAL

For the Group, we understand that a healthy environment is
the basis for economic development and social well-being. As
a responsible organisation, the Group will pursue environmental
protection, comply with the existing laws and regulations,
handle and dispose of all materials to avoid adverse impact on
health or environment.

During the fiscal year of 2020/2021, the Group did not
identify any crucial incidents of non-compliance relating to
environmental problems.

Emissions

The Group is devoted to environmental conservation, and has
implemented eco-friendly measures in all of its operation units
so as to reduce carbon emissions generated during operations.

Air Pollution Emissions

In view of the Group's business focusing on entertainment
services and property management services, our business
activities do not involve any air pollution emission arising from
the use of gas fuel or automobile fuel.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions are a leading cause of global
warming, which leads to sharp climate changes and poses
a tremendous threat to the global ecosystem. The Group
understands although we have no direct greenhouse gas
emission, we inevitably generate indirect greenhouse gas such
as CO2 during energy and water resources utilisation. In view
of this, the Group, as an organisation with corporate social
responsibility, considers the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions as the top issue we concern about.

The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group mainly come from
energy consumption for business activities in various cities,
including energy use, electricity consumed for treatment of
drinking water and sewage, as well as greenhouse gas emissions
indirectly generated from the employees taking planes for
business trips. In addition, we are committed to promoting
greening in the residential estates to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions generated from our business activities.
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The Group's club in Hong Kong holds valid sewage treatment
licenses, and its sewage discharge has been complying with the
discharge limits specified in the licenses. As for the residential
estates under our management in the PRC, sewage discharge
mainly comes from the everyday life of property owners.
We discharge wastes in a way stipulated by the municipal
government, and maintain the pipelines, valves and other
equipments related for the sewage discharge and exhaust
systems on a regular basis to guarantee its normal operation.

The total greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group
in the fiscal year of 2020/2021 were approximately 56,765
tonnes, the majority of which were generated by Ningbo AUX.
The greenhouse gas emissions generated by Ningbo AUX
decreased by 12% as compared to the previous financial year.
The decrease in emissions was mainly due to the fact that some
projects of Ningbo AUX were no longer responsible for related
project property management services after the termination of
the property management service agreement. In view of the
intensity of greenhouse gas emissions, the Group will calculate
the greenhouse gas emissions of each residential estate, as
shown in the table below. In this financial year, the intensity of
greenhouse gas emissions of Ningbo AUX decreased by 16% as
compared to the previous financial year. In view of this, Ningbo
AUX continues to implement all kinds of solutions in its energy
efficiency programme to reduce the generation of greenhouse
gases, including planting to promote greening in residential
estates and posting up labels to remind the employees of saving
electricity and water, and equipping residential estates with LED
lightings.

AEERNETEENEM B ABRNISKEERE
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As shown below,

BRBE

approximately 98% of greenhouse gas

generated by Ningbo AUX is indirect emissions from energy

use. Although relevant energy use by Ningbo AUX is mainly
attributable to use by property owners, which is beyond the
control by Ningbo AUX, it continues to enhance the publicity in

residential estates for economical use of electricity and water,
with the hope of minimising the environmental impact of its

BTRMAR

Hi R RO BE

#)E98% B R e HT AT EE £ 1R
BERERMEEIN - HABRNRER
REREXTZREPEMRMY - I
FERRHAAEIERINBER -
WAFE%FhWMﬁ*%p%% KK
BERIEBHRENTE -

8 B 50 B

businesses.
Total emission (tonne)
Scope Source of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) AR & ()
& & R = R ORE B ROROR (2% R % ) 2019/20 2020/21
—N/=F =B=F =—
Scope 2 Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased 62,725.64 55,587.32
electricity
gE2 BES MR REZEEREBIMR
Scope 3 Electricity consumption for drinking water and sewage 1,188.38 938.71
treatment?
EE3 RERKEGKEMBERNE N
Employees taking planes for business trips 22.45 30.37
B ERERMEIINE B
Data of greenhouse gas emissions (Ningbo AUX) 2019/20 2020/21
BERBHERBE(ZRRRE) —E-N/ZT ZBZ® =-—
Greenhouse gas emissions (tonne) 63,936.47 56,556.40
B = 88 HE (R
Greenhouse gas emissions per residential estate under our management 1,704.97 1,431.81

(tonne/residential estate)*

BEEREEELNR

EREHRME EEER)

2 Due to data collection limitation, the power supply discharge coefficient in
mainland China was set at 0.71 kg/kWh.

® Due to data collection limitation, the per unit electricity consumption for
drinking water and sewage treatment in mainland China was set at 0.596 and
0.29 kWh respectively, while the preset discharge coefficient for purchased
electricity in mainland China was set at 0.71 kg/kWh.

* The average number of residential estates under our management was 37.5
in the financial year of 2019/2020, while it was 39.5 in the financial year of
2020/2021.
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AUX generated approximately 208 tonnes of greenhouse gases
in the financial year of 2020/2021, and approximately 222
tonnes in the financial year of 2019/2020. AUX’s greenhouse gas
emission data in the financial years of 2019/2020 and 2020/2021
are as follows:

BafifRr 2T/ T —RFEMELEN
BEREBLOR208M MBRITR=2F—H =
T oTHMBFEMEENRERELN A2220 -
BRfiRn=—E2— N/ —ZT_TFER_ZT_F/
TECFEMNAERBEBEEREBELOT

AUX'’s greenhouse gas emission in 2019/2020
REfi—ZE—h / —ZERERBHENR

1%

Total emissions

IR

222.47
tonnes/i§

AUX'’s greenhouse gas emission in 2020/2021% ¢
BOfi—Z—F " —FBZREHEKRS

1%

Total emissions

PR

208.12
tonneslif

[ Scope2 Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect energy [ Scope 2 Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect energy
HE—  EREERE RSN HE—  EREERERETN
Scope 3 Electricity consumption for drinking water and Scope 3 Electricity consumption for drinking water and
#WE=  sewage treatment #E= sewage treatment
BRI R/K RS/ M ERER)E 1 BRIE RKRT/KE T ERER)E 71
Scope 3 Employees taking planes for business trips Scope 3 Employees taking planes for business trips
HE= (RERLRELINE HE= EERLRELIIE

As shown above, AUX's greenhouse gas emissions in
2020/2021 dropped by approximately 6% as compared with the
previous financial year, which is, in the opinion of the Group's
management, attributable to the operation of the Group's
clubbing business and restaurant being affected by COVID-19
pandemic in the financial year. Looking ahead, since energy
use is the main source of AUX's greenhouse gas emissions,
it will continue to strengthen energy conservation monitoring
measures to ensure that all electrical appliances are properly
turned off when not in use and that all lights and air conditioners
are turned off outside office hours to reduce unnecessary
electricity consumption.

5 According to the Sustainability Report 2020 of HK Electric, its carbon emissions
in 2020 are 0.71 kg CO,e/kWh, while the carbon emissions of CLP Power are
0.57 kg CO,e/kWh according to its Sustainability Report 2020.

¢ With regard to fresh water treatment, according to the report 2019/2020

of the Water Supplies Department, its per unit electricity consumption is

0.596 kWh/m?. With regard to sewage treatment, as shown on the website

of the Drainage Services Department, its per unit electricity consumption in

2019/2020 is 0.29 kWh/m?3.
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Wastes Management

No major hazardous waste was found in the clubbing and
entertainment business and property management business of
the Group.

Despite the failure to calculate the amount of non-hazardous
waste generated by AUX for the clubbing and entertainment
business of AUX due to data collection limitation, AUX
is committed to reducing waste generation to an extent
controllable and encouraging employees to classify and recycle
waste. AUX hopes to promote waste reduction at the source,
starting from reducing the use and packaging to decrease
waste generation. In addition, for the waste cooking oils of
the restaurants and bar outlets, AUX engages qualified waste
collectors to collect waste cooking oils generated from their
operating activities for recycling on a regular basis.

Ningbo AUX has entrusted the local qualified wastes
transportation agency to transport and dispose of the non-
hazardous wastes produced by the property owners, and
enabled the recycling of wastes. All wastes have been disposed
of in compliance with local laws and regulations. Recycled
materials concentration points have been set in the service areas
to carry out collection, classified management and declaration
of the statutory hazardous wastes and recyclable wastes.

As for the domestic garbage discarded every day by users in the
residential areas, Ningbo AUX has set up waste recycling bins to
collect recyclable wastes, and arranges special staff to classify
and store the recycled wastes separately every day, and deliver
the recycled wastes regularly to the waste transfer station or
the solid waste recycling treatment plant.

However, as it is difficult to collect data about the intensity
and quantity of wastes, the Group failed to report the weight
of relevant wastes. Although relevant wastes of Ningbo AUX
are mainly generated by the property owners, which is beyond
the controllable range of Ningbo AUX, Ningbo AUX will still
strengthen the waste classification, recovery and disposal
process, and attempt to reduce the impact of its business on
the environment.

Use of Resources

The Group undertakes to become a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise and makes our contributions to
environmental protection. To reduce carbon emissions, we've
taken the initiative to perform the energy-saving measures in
our business activities.
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Electric Energy Consumption

The major carbon footprints of Ningbo AUX come from
electric energy consumption. Because some projects of
Ningbo AUX were no longer responsible for related project
property management services after the termination of the
property management service agreement, the electric energy
consumption of Ningbo AUX in the fiscal year of 2020/2021
decreased by 11% as compared to that of last year, as shown
in the figures below”:

Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Years 2019/2020)
R R BT BE R 1 A
N/ ZEHHFE)

=

Total %

. (-3
consumption 4%
BRE =
88,345,970
<1%~I kWh
<1% =Rt
<1% FEE
<1%

Tianjin [1Jiujiang M Nanchang | Hangzhou
R nT = M
[ Ningbo [ Chengdu | Shanghai [ Qingdao
BK B #B L BB
[ Jinhua Nanjing [ Changsha
vE AR 1237
In consideration of the energy use intensity, i.e., the energy

consumption per residential estates under our management,
the energy use intensity of Ningbo AUX in the fiscal years
of 2020/2021 was 1,982,076 kWh® per residential estate,
representing a decrease of 16% as compared with the
corresponding period last year. Although the energy used in the
residential estates are mainly consumed by property owners, yet
Ningbo AUX will still be devoted to propaganda of electricity
saving within the residential estates. Besides, Ningbo AUX
equipped the residential estates with LED lightings for realising
the objective of energy saving and further reducing energy
consumption.

7 The managed projects in Jinhua stopped the provision of property
management services after the termination of the property management
service agreement, so no “Environmental” data in relation to the Group have
been generated in this financial year.

8 The average number of residential estates under our management was 37.5
in the financial year of 2019/2020, while it was 39.5 in the financial year of
2020/2021.
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Use of Energy of Ningbo AUX
(Fiscal Years 2020/2021)
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The electricity consumption of AUX in the financial year of
2020/2021 was 315,276 kWh, decreased by 7% as compared
to the previous financial year. The management of the Group
believes that, the decrease is attributable to the operation of
the Group's clubbing business and restaurant being affected
by COVID-19 pandemic in the financial year. The management
remains committed to enhancing environmental awareness of
our employees and placing more electricity saving labels, to
further reduce the use of energy.

Water Resource Consumption

As drinking water is a very precious resource on the Earth,
saving water is one of the important goals of the Group. The
Group also makes efforts to reduce electricity consumption
generated from water supply, thereby reducing the Group's
carbon footprints.

The water resource consumption of Ningbo AUX in the
financial year of 2020/2021 was approximately 1,513,556
tonnes, with the water consumption intensity of 38,318
tonnes/residential estate. Like energy use, water consumption
in residential estates was totally attributable to use by
property owners. Although Ningbo AUX does not directly
reduce the water resource consumption, it will actively
promote water residential
encourage the recycling of water resources, such as the use
of used but relatively clean water for cleaning and the use
of electrical appliances and household products which help
reduce water consumption. The water consumption of Ningbo
AUX is illustrated in the figure below?’:

conservation in estates and

The managed projects in Jinhua stopped the provision of property
management services after the termination of the property management
service agreement, so no “Environmental” data in relation to the Group have

been generated in this financial year.
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Energy Use by Ningbo AUX Energy Use of Ningbo AUX
(Financial year of 2019/2020) (Financial year of 2020/2021)
R B 5 BT BE R £ A BERRRHTEERER

Z-h/“EHHFE) ZER-R /" -BREE)

Total water Total water

consumption consumption
HmEKE BEKE
1,681,808 1,513,556

Shanghai [ Jiujiang = Nanjing B Nanchang Shanghai [ Jijiang = Nanjing [ Nanchang
b AT MR ma b b s MR 1]
M Ningbo M Chengdu | Hangzhou [ Changsha Tianjin M Ningbo M Chengdu | Hangzhou
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Water resource consumption data (Ningbo AUX) 2019/2020 2020/2021
KEREEBE (B RR =) “T-h/=T =BT =-—
Water resource consumption (tonne/m?3) 1,681,808.16 1,513,555.54
K& JRH FE (B S275K)
Water resource consumption per residential estate under our management 44,848.22 38,317.86

(tonne/residential estate)®

BEEEEEERNKERBERM (TEEER)

The water consumption of AUX in the financial year of 2020/2021 BRETHR-ZT_ZF /= T_—Hﬁﬁﬁzﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁmi
was approximately 1,635 tonnes, while it was approximately #3141, 635|1¢E ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ —h/ZE=F%
2,378 tonnes in the financial year of 2019/2020. The management HEFERAKEL A2, 378[@E o EIRZ I PQE%
believes that, the decrease in water consumption during the HAFERKEN BRI EEREE R AT BT
year is attributable to the Group being affected by COVID-19 EXIHTEBEXEMN - EEESEHER S
pandemic in the financial year. The management remains Fi*gﬁglﬁlmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ'ﬂféﬁﬁ B SORR
committed to raising our employees’ awareness on water HEBKHRIBEHFE

conservation initiatives in order to reduce the impact of our

business on the environment.

0 The average number of residential estates under our management was 37.5 1 —ZT—h /" THREFEFHEE/NBHE KIS —F
in the financial year of 2019/2020, while it was 39.5 in the financial year of TR/ C-HREEFHER/NREE B395 -
2020/2021.
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Packaging Materials

In view of the Group's business focusing on entertainment
services and property management services, our business
activities do not involve any packaging materials used for
finished products.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

Currently, the Group mainly uses the energy of electric energy
and water resources. In the face of the increasingly severe
environmental pollution, the Group, as a part of the community,
is committed to implementing energy saving measures in
different levels of routine operations, including:

unnecessary power

BEYH
ENAEENEBHREANRERG LY X EE
RFEEERE  RFEXHEH LI RERAR
HEmHNBRDH -

BEIR & F5 3% a5 &t &)
ARARETIENERERBRELEIKER
EHRFSAAREE  ERERO—OHF
AEEHNEAFEETHTREE LE A
BEHE e - B

We encourage employees to turn off

Saving electricity (e.g.: floor or corridor lights)

VIERE

Conserving water

BERK
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BMBBEIRETLENER
(fn: BEERE ) B

We encourage employees to
save water consumption
while using the washroom or
conducting cleaning work
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The Environment and Natural Resources RERRXAER
Residential Estate Greening BRIEHE

Ningbo AUX delicately develops gardens and greening space in A& EMNEFR T BRAZESECEREY M
the residential estates for each project by virtue of professional EEBE®EEER B Mg EREIBHLEE - W
greening management, such as planting diverse flowers, grasses HEZEIHNEER K HSHEHMRE 2
and trees, which improves the microclimate in the community, BHEMNEMSE  AHEXFPFTRRNEAE
enriches the landscaping in the community, and enables the #MZHEEMNER -BMEBNEF—EFEE
property owners to experience the biodiversity of the nature. BTN EWHTE Bl ZEER] -

One of the residential estates has ever been honoured as the

“most beautiful courtyard” by the government.
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Employment and Labour Standards

The Group is aware of the fact that our business success
depends on the cooperation and cohesion of our teams. Our
teams are the most precious assets of the Group. Therefore,
based on the people-oriented core values, we are committed
to providing attractive remunerations, benefits and welfares for
employees, arrange reasonable working hours and holidays,
and ensure all employees enjoy equal opportunity. The Group
also holds internal activities on a regular basis and encourage
the employees’ participation to increase the Group's cohesion,
strengthen the employees’ recognition of the Group, and
reinforce their sense of belonging.

Employment

Our Employees

As at 31 March 2021, AUX and Ningbo AUX have recruited 1,077
employees in total, including 1,029 employees of Ningbo AUX
and 48 employees of AUX.

He
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Number of Employees by Age
BERABNBDSZETAY
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We deeply believe that a diversified, embraced and harmonious
family can help us to have a better understanding about the
demands of different customers. Up to 22% of the employees
have served the Group for more than five years, which further
proves that the Group's people-oriented concept has been
passed on to every employee via practical experience.

Employee Benefits and Assessment

The Group deeply acknowledges that the Group’s development
and success indeed rely on the efforts and pains of all
employees, so the Group provides competitive salaries to pay
back the employees’ efforts. In addition to providing attractive
remunerations and benefits to employees, the Group not only
offers performance bonuses according to the Group's business
results and the employees’ performance, but also distributes
holiday benefits on traditional festivals every year. The Group
also provides Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (MPF) for
employees in accordance with the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, and pays endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund for employees
in accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China.

Number of Employees by Seniority
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In order to reward hard-working employees more effectively,
the Group has established a well-organised performance
management system to efficiently motivate their sustainable
development, help employees make planning for their career,
realise talent inheritance, and enable the Group to develop
toward the sustainable operation goal. The Group implements
monthly, quarterly and yearly performance assessment to help
employees establish definite, measurable, achievable, position-
related and time-sensitive key performance indicators of their
own, supervise their progress on a regular basis, and take
appropriate improvement measures if applicable. The Group will
adjust the remuneration of employees regularly by referring to
their assessment results and comprehensive evaluation and by
combining the Group's overall business performance, so as to
ensure employees gain the best remunerations in proportion to
their efforts.

A Harmonious Working Environment

The Group is devoted to creating a harmonious and embraced
working environment for employees, and protect them from any
harassment or discrimination. The Group treats fairly and equally
the people regardless of their gender, sexual orientation,
disability, age, nationality or ethnic origin, family status or
other personal characteristics that are protected by law. Even
as for our systems for recruitment, remunerations and benefits,
holidays, trainings, assessment, promotion, etc., we evaluate the
employees according to their abilities, skills, qualifications and
performances.

Work and Life Balance

In order to ensure our employees achieve balance between
work and life, and maintain a balanced and healthy lifestyle, our
actual working time is eight to ten hours a day and five to six
days a week, so that our employees can have sufficient time to
rest. Our employees can enjoy annual leave of five to fifteen
days as well as other statutory labour holidays according to their
position level. In addition, employees also enjoy compassionate
leave, marital leave, maternity leave, etc. As for Ningbo AUX,
an employee with a new-born baby under one year of age can
further enjoy thirty-minute breastfeeding leave twice a day.

Moreover, Ningbo AUX provides a series of facilities for
employees, including dining hall and dormitory, so as to improve
their sense of belonging to the Group, help those employees
who come to work far away from home to achieve work-life
balance more easily, and alleviate their economic burdens.
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Communication Channels for Employees

The Group attaches importance to the opinions of employees.
All employees and the management are encouraged to use our
diversified communication channels, such as: e-mail, forum or
bulletin board, to realise horizontal or vertical communications.
Generally when an employee has any complaint against his/
her work, we'll arrange the department supervisor to have an
interview with him/her, while the employee can also complain
against the person or department concerned. If the person
or department being complained against fails to provide
satisfactory solutions, the complaint will be submitted to
the superior department level by level, so as to ensure the
employees can receive a clear feedback.

The Company encourages employees to raise reasonable
suggestions about the Group. The HR Department is
responsible for collecting suggestions of employees and
guaranteeing their accurate delivery.

Talent Retention

The Group cherishes talents, and the above-mentioned HR
management measures have successfully contributed to the
employee retention rate of about 95% for the Group.
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Health and Safety

Health and safety of the employees are of vital importance to
the Group. The Group is committed to providing a safe working
environment for employees, and guarantees to fully comply with
all occupational health and safety regulations. The Group has
increased information and rules about occupational health and
workplace safety in the employee handbook, and has formulated
policies about the safe working environment, such as Special
Measures against Typhoon and Rainstorm, defining working
procedures and evacuation issues in severe weather. Apart from
this, the Group will invite fire protection equipment suppliers to
give lectures about fire safety awareness on a regular basis and
provide fire drills for employees to ensure that they are familiar
with the necessary procedures if a fire breaks out.

Any employee suffering from work-related injuries is entitled
to corresponding compensation benefits in accordance with
relevant national regulations. In the case of Hong Kong
employees, the Group will report the case to the Labour
Department in accordance with section 15 of the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, and contact the insurance company
for settlement of claims. In the meantime, the Group will
also provide sufficient work-related injury leave to allow the
employee sufficient rest.

In addition, the Group requires its employees to wear masks
during working hours and take body temperature everyday,
and provides alcoholic instant hand sanitisers for employees in
workplaces, in response to COVID-19 pandemic. The Group will
continue to make great efforts to keep our staff healthy and
safe

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to participate in all kinds of
in-service training, and also provides employees with various
internal and external training and development opportunities to
help them maximise their business potential.
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The annual assessment results will be used to provide suitable
trainings for employees, in an effort to continuously improve
the Group's talent quality and working skills, motivate working
enthusiasm of employees and stimulate them to face challenges.
Apart from considering the Group’s business vision and
target needs, the training and development programme also
simultaneously evaluates employee performance and functional
gap, coordinates with the Company and the management in
establishing the education and training framework, and makes
plans for internal and external courses such as new employee
training, professional training, training of various management
levels, training relating to environmental protection, core values
of the Group, etc. through physical or electronic learning
methods, providing employees with all-round training, and
enables the Group’'s employees to continue improving their
professional and managerial competence, find out the platforms
where they can show their abilities, grow together with the
Group, and establish a steady cooperative relationship.

The Group arranges new employees to receive on-boarding
training, aiming to make the employees know about the Group,
master the codes of practice, techniques and methods for
handling business, and adapt to the new environment and new
job quickly. In addition, the Group also provides training on
safety knowledge and environmental protection knowledge for
employees, which helps establish their awareness of safety and
environmental protection. Apart from the training on technical
procedures, employees can also participate on fire training so
as to enhance their awareness of fire prevention.

The percentage of employees trained in Ningbo AUX is 18%.
In the fiscal year of 2020/2021, Ningbo AUX has provided
approximately 4,210 hours of trainings for employees, with
an average of 1.75 training hours received by each trained
employee.

The percentage of employees trained in AUX is 10%. In the fiscal
year of 2020/2021, AUX has provided approximately 139 hours
of trainings for employees, with an average of 2 training hours
received by each trained employee.

BETNFEEZEROEMURETRHEAE
HIEF U RARNEBANEEETER
BE - WA B T TIEAIRIL M BL B - Dl AR 3%
RAERTEEARELLERS MBRFLIN
NRFFGEETENEBERD KA AR H
EEBRARIUBBIREE  REMAIRK -
BEEJR - EEEEEIR  RERENERE
e AEEZLEBERNIEBRE EBE
BREFLEBNIN  RBHETE2HUME
Al BAKREE TR THRAHEHEXRER L
hoRIBCEB RS BAKEARKE
VWREIREZAFRBIE -

AEBLRHEFABB TR AREI  EHE
BETHBEASE YZEREXHOHTH &
il 7308 S PERBEREHIRE - FHTHE-
o REBENTRETRHER 2 MEFI MR
RAHBFI  BYEZE2REBREEH - BT
e FFigal 2z s - BTIVE2 B ARSI
NS EIAER -

ERBROHEEXBIRERENB S L B18% -
BFRETHN T - -HHREFEE B
REELLN4210/NENFNTFET FHBUR
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Labour Standards

The Group has established an employment and welfare policy
in compliance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the labour laws of the PRC, and strictly prohibited the
recruitment of any candidate under the age of 18 to avoid
any child labour. The Group will never recruit any child labour
under the age restricted by local laws, and the Group's HR
Department will require the job candidates provide valid
identification certificates to confirm their actual age at time of
interview. Once any misuse of child labour is found, the Group
will immediately suspend his/her work, send the child labour
back to his/her original residence, and deliver to his/her parent
or legal guardian, for which the Group will bear the required
transportation and accommodation expenses, and pay the
salary due for his/her actual work.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to procurement
principles. In the procurement of materials and services, the
Group has established procurement policies and procedures
to promote fair and open competition. We ensure that we are
able to meet the best economic benefits in terms of price,
quality, delivery period and service when purchasing materials
and hiring services. As a responsible organisation, the Group
abides by the spirit of contract and complies with the principles,
objectives and contents of the contract signed between us and
the suppliers.

The Group has the responsibility to ensure that procurement
of materials and services is conducted in a highly professional
manner and complies with the established code of ethics, so
that the resources are used properly, and the suppliers will
have the confidence in continuing doing business with the
Group. We must ensure that the suppliers understand and
comply with the Code of Conduct and the procurement policies
formulated by the Group. The Group has established a list of
selected suppliers. Before any supplier is approved to enter this
list, we will review their company backgrounds (including the
recognitions, qualifications and licenses they have obtained),
product pricing and supply terms. In order to standardise
relevant systems and processes, the Group has formulated
relevant work guidelines and standardised contract forms, and
conduct comprehensive evaluation on the products and services
of suppliers on a regular basis to guarantee their compliance
with the Group's strict standards.

96

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3

& T A

AEEBTIMNEBREBMERE  —HERBEE
CEBIEOD RPHLB) AR - I ERZE AT
KM TNARBESE UL ETHRE - K
SEBTHEFRENREEZRBHMEL
REBAHERTAEABSE B EIRES
M B D EBEAXHUNERELER Tl - —B 5
BRAET AEEBYAEEZETNTIE
WEZETXBDRETHINERXFKEEF
BEEANEE EXBENRBEEAORAEH

EECWENEBERIENIE -
% 5 18 )
HEEER

AEEFFIERBRA - £XBYOHNRE
FECAEEURENRERRREFRER

FRAFMBEF - AREKRERBEYEAERR
B BREER H8 KEHERBEEFS

H ONE&RENEERS - FRABENK
B AKRERTEORE  BTRMEHER
PRI HMRA - B RAR -

AEEREFERYHBTNRBORBIUASER
EHANET AT EMENBRED - IR
BRBEHEMN TRHEAAEFELEAKRES
BAEXRER - HRMPLABRHEEZHOREY
AEBAFILNTATARRBERE - A%E
BERY-METHERRE wHERELE
MARER - RMEEHERARSR(BHEES
EREHNRA - BREFARE) EmEBEARAR
HEGR - SRBHEBELRE - AKE 5
ETHBMITEES MEREARXA - WiEH
HBEEBNERMRRFSER[ETHEE TG
UNHERNENTEASENEBETEE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERERE

The list of selected suppliers will be reviewed at the end of each
year. Such review involves the evaluation on whether a supplier’s
pricing, product and service quality, efficiency, reliability,
the ability to deliver goods on schedule, licence update and
technical capability are still in compliance with the Group's
requirements and standards.

The Group selects reputable and reliable suppliers to provide
high-quality, affordable and sustainable products and services.
The Group has a transparent and independent procurement
process, with an aim to promoting competitiveness. This move
will also serve the benefits of our shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Group expects to establish a vertically
integrated supply chain management system by integrating the
procurement resources and developing the supplier selection
and management mechanism, thereby actively providing
comprehensive solutions and satisfying customer needs.

Meanwhile, the Group encourages suppliers to promote
corporate social responsibility activities and abide by corporate
social responsibility rules. All business transactions shall
maintain high-standard ethics; bribery or other illegitimate
benefits must not be provided or accepted; information relating
to business activities, structure, financial status and performance
shall be disclosed on a regular basis in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Product Liability

Customers are the cornerstone for the Group to achieve
sustainable development and a source of power to promote
product innovation. The Group strictly requires that our
products and services must conform to public interests, and
handle inquires and opinions of customers in a timely manner.
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Ningbo AUX

Ningbo AUX adopts the whole process customer service T FETHATPEIANMAMEEEEZBETR
concept in project positioning, planning and management of its  IBEEN - RE -  EEMNDBETPRFES
property management business in the mainland China, covers Wi#FiBiEABAEEENNETP REEEE
the customer satisfaction indicator of related operation units in  JI A S ZEEENUMNEIEZEHE  KEFF
all regions into the scope of performance evaluation on these — z i3 + 435 & T ET o RIS ©

operation units, and constantly improves our services from the

interest of customers.

Management
according to law

REEE

The Group conducts lawful management and operation in accordance with the requirements
in government laws, regulations and policies, so as to ensure our property safety and value
increase. By virtue of normative approaches and with the goal of pursuing satisfaction of
property owners, the Group provides efficient and superior services for the property owners,
and satisfies their requirements honestly without fraud.

REBBRER ER BRRER REEER iKY BRASEVNELZZEEE -G
BRBNFR - UEFPREREXNER MEFPRHESH BEORE  WREPEN
S A -

Superior services

BER®

The Group develops business earnestly, makes unremitting pursuits and improves the
details to strive for perfection. The Group also makes full use of the internal and external
information about quality environment, occupational health and safety, and customer
feedback, constantly improves the quality, environmental and occupational health and safety
management system, keeps such systems always in effect, and pursues endlessly a higher
level of management and performance.

EEB LA SHEH - MRER  THEMREG  WRBFERXZ AHIVNBRIITNEERE - B
¥RER2EELABEENRE  FHENLEEE RBREMIEERR2EERRAIRIHN
BRER THEXEEBNEXANESREX -

Infinite innovation

IR A

The Group will focus on infinite innovation, and uphold the spirit of infinite innovation from
business levels to management approaches. Employees of the Group shall have the spirit
of loving and respecting their jobs and being ready for innovation, and attempt to achieve
the synchronous development of both individual and corporate values.
AEBBHENERNEH REBERLZERFR HABERANOES ~&5EHE
TEAEMME ZRAFNEY BERAAEBEECENRLSEHR -

Sustainable
development

SHBR

Standardised management is crucial to the Group’s development. To achieve development,
the Group must attach importance to standardised management, establish and improve
its quality, environmental and occupational health and safety systems, establish effective
inspection and implementation mechanism, and guarantee the Group's steady and
sustainable development.

REETETERBERNER SEZERVATIESEENHASBER BYUNMTESRENE
B RENBXRRZEHE BYAUNBREMEERS  BREEXRBENHEER -
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The Customer Service Department of Ningbo AUX is
responsible for caring about customers actively, handling and
managing customer complaints, systematising and refining
customer relationship management, standardising complaint
handling work, and enabling all complaints made by property
owners to be solved timely and reasonably.

In order to standardise and regulate customer services of
operation units in various regions, the Group has formulated
normative documents such as Property Owner's Complaints
Handling Sheet, Standard Operating Procedures for Property
Owner’s Complaints Handling, etc. to constantly improve its
customer relationship management level.

BERRmIINEFRGHEEIIAETS
RIEXFPERAMEETIF  HHEPARERET
ERGCEBAL  WRBRFRIEIE - 5
REFPHZBERFELE SEMEINFER -

RIEEHEEEENNTPRE TEREL
ER&EL  REHEHCEPRFEDEIEE)
KR P IREFREIREEXRR) S 6 E X
SERTEZFHEREEAKTF -

Complaint reception

RFER

Receiving a complaint

BHRE
v

Keeping records of the complaint

3R B °C 8%
v Y
Minor complaint Important complaint
- -
Making commitment Making commitment
fif ) AR R i ) AR 7
- -
Reporting to Officer Reporting to Manager
L®REHE LREE

v -

v
Major complaint
Ep N &

-

Reporting to General Manager

LHmEE
v

Holding an office meeting

AMBLEH
v

Customer Service Officer organises Manager organises for General Manager organises
for resolution resolution paying return visits for resolution
BEFRBHEABHER REABER BEREA MR

l

Keeping archives and paying return visits

BELETES
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Complaint
channels

RiFRE

Satisfaction
survey

mMERERE

ZET

Upon receipt of the complaint from a property owner, the property butler will firstly show
sympathy for what the property owner is suffering from on behalf of the department being
complained, and keep detailed records in the Logs of Customer Service Department
immediately. In case of a minor complaint, it may be submitted to the department being
complained in the form of Work Contact Sheet.

EERIEFRFR  DEEREARRERFABFARNEFNEERTRIE - L7 BAESE
PRSP M08k - 5B SR F AT ACTERE 8 8) 69 7 308X B IR R
BOFT o

Complaint channels for property owners include:

EPRIFRBEYE:

e Reception desk switchboard e QQ group of property owners
BB Bl & 48 ¥ P QQ#

e Customer service receptionist e Official Weibo and WeChat account
ERATA B 77 R 18 R IRAE SR

Ningbo AUX employs students from high schools as temporary staff to conduct sampling
survey on satisfaction of the property owners about our products and services, and collect
customer opinions and suggestions about the daily services of Ningbo AUX, in an attempt
to constantly improve the Group’s customer service level and property management
quality. Moreover, Ningbo AUX listens to the voices of customers, actively collects
customer opinions, rapidly responds to customer needs, and devotes itself to continuously
improving the customer service via channels such as hotline, written suggestion, property
owners’ forum, social media, etc.

ERRAAINSTEREFEAERKT HEPETERNBREREENMERASE -
THERRRINASTRBEETELPEREARENERE  UTHRASEN T PR K
FROEEERE - BERARHEBBARERE EHEE XFPHE HRXE
BERE HEZFLE BRUSEFER ARCOEZFFZ BOIRNFENESR
PRI IE -
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AUX L

AUX is committed to providing the best customer service RAEHBMIABRREESZETEPREER K
experience, safeguarding relevant intellectual property rights FEJ/ERFE BEHFAEBE A FHERE - (REBEIL
of the software used in clubs, protecting customer privacy, B  BREMANLZERHIEESE RBofE
guaranteeing the security in clubs, and preventing drug abuse. A HEEGH EREBE THBREDT

AUX has formulated relevant systems to regulate relevant

operations of employees as follows:

AUX is committed to providing customers with an efficient complaint handling mechanism
and taking the following approaches to achieve this goal:

RIS nBEERE - EERMEORFEEKS AR TINTEZNERNLBEEF:

o All employees deal with customer complaints in an objective and positive manner;
FEEINEEBENEENEERETEFNHKRF:
I ° Actively cciiwtact ggstorﬂe(s to foll(?w up or resolve complaints in a real-time manner;
Al THHRFFREBRANSRARSE: | |
15 iR B J Investigate the cause of the complaint in a real-time manner and provide remedial
measures;
BNEF A B IR AFIRE - I 12 L A8 R /O 7 R HE Bt
o Record the details of all complaints and record the contact information of the
complainant in daily log for investigation and follow-up; and
B MRFAEG  WHRFANBELHESARSPUHBASTMRE : &
J Periodically review the progress of unresolved cases.
THmERBREREE -
AUX has formulated intellectual property policies and procedures to manage, protect and
monitor the copyright usage:
Re R ANBERREREFANEE RELERRENER:
o Prohibit the use of unauthorised software or the reproduction of any object of
intellectual property rights;
ZIEFERARERENRHERTAANBRERNY M
Safeguarding o Before using a third party material, ensure that a license has been granted,;
intellectual EEAE=ZAMER  BREETFHA:
property rights o Educate and remind all employees to comply with copyright laws via email or
HENBERE intranet;
RAETFHEMHIANBBRAELIREREE TETRIES:
o Retain lawyers to verify copyright owners, buy public performance licenses and deal
with other copyright problems; and
HESE R AN A% B AR A A - 8 B X B 18 Bh AR 0 BE 3 B i B A T 0 I
o Establish the List of Licensed Songs according to the public performance licenses
already bought.
BEBEEBE ARBERERRI(EEFAZHE) -
AUX has established a membership system to provide more convenience and benefits for
Protecting membership customers. All membership data are kept and encrypted by the membership

customer brivac database manager to avoid unauthorised access to the sensitive data of the members.
ﬁﬁﬁgpﬂ\% Y mEHmemErNREessE ANMATEENBRRAESHENEESR - a0
’ ?\@E’\J@Z%ﬂi’ﬂEE@E&@%%TUE???JH%‘ CHBRRZBEAEREHANBERAT2HE
BHNERERERN -
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AUX is committed to providing customers with a safe and orderly environment within the
club, to ensure that customers have a wonderful time there:

RefiZNABEEREMARK - BAZ2ERFNERE  BABEREAABERER:

Safety
in the club
BREMEZE

Professional security personnel are hired to maintain the order within the club;
SINEERRLER AN T

Ensure all the hired security personnel hold valid security certificates and pass the
drug test;

BARMAXBNRZEOBERRNRLBE N B BEERAH

Closed-circuit television operates in the form of 24/7 (24 hours a day, 7 days a week),
and in the event of an accident, we will view relevant records for follow-up;

B BR AR bA24/7 (— R24/NBy - —IATR) P EME - 3 4 BN 7] #1 5 A8 B °C 8% A
1EER #

Strictly control the flow of club patrons;

BRARES S MEE AN

Check the identification certificate of any customer suspicious of being under 18;
and

mEERAW T/ \RALOSHBRIXM &

If we find any customer under 18 or uncooperative, the employees shall ask that
customer to leave the club. If necessary, we will inform the police for assistance.
EERERNDT \REEXAHEBEETSENBLAT BREEREXEHERRMAS
Fr-MBERE XSBHESHY -

AUX has established rules to prevent drug abuse:
B T2 AT B bR e R Al -

Prevention
against drug
abuse

B L B B2

All the new employees must pass the drug test before recruited;
PMEMABRZEIVNEARBEMRARABEER

The Group carries out conventional drug test every month in the clubs, and choose
random employees to receive sample test;

RefiBARSMETEREYRS  LEEKETEABETEANH

Any employee who is suspected of taking any prohibited drugs can be directly
reported to his/her department supervisor;

MERERMETRAEMEY  ATEZRREPIETERS

Our security personnel will request any person suspicious of dealing or taking any
prohibited drugs to leave the club;

MEBREMARSGKBRAEINEY  RLEABSUNERZASBR

If any specific evidence is found to prove any person dealing or taking any prohibited
drugs, the club manager will call the police immediately; and
MERAREREEZARIUARBENEY  SHAEESVANRERE R

AUX will arrange Caritas Lok Heep Club to provide lectures with respect to drugs,
mental health and other healthy lifestyle to employees.
RolfiTHRRELERSREENS R LEREMEMRREENEETE
To
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Anti-Corruption

The Group prohibits any act of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The good moral integrity and anti-
corruption mechanism ensures the Group's acts in all work be
professional, honest and fair.

The Group strictly abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, and requires all employees not to directly or
indirectly provide, undertake, require or accept any illegitimate
benefits, or carry out other dishonest acts in breach of good
faith, law or national regulations in the course of business
engagement, including criminal offences including corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering, and other acts
such as providing illegal political contributions, improper
charitable donations or sponsorships, providing or accepting
unreasonable gifts, entertainments or other illegitimate
benefits, infringing business secrets, trademark rights, patent
rights, copyrights and other intellectual property rights,
engaged in unfair competition, etc. The Group requires that
employees must report any benefits received, for which the
Group will make the final decision on disposal.

During the fiscal year of 2020/2021, neither the Group nor its
employees were prosecuted for corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering.

Whistle-Blowing Channel and Policy

The complaint whistleblower shall truthfully report the
situation to the Administration Centre. Upon receipt of
the whistleblowing matter, the Administration Centre will
investigate the complaint. The Administration Centre will
keep the whistleblower’s personal information confidential,
and will submit the case to the competent external agency
for disposal when necessary. The whistleblower will undertake
corresponding legal liability for fabricating facts, falsifying
evidence, or conducting false charge or frame-up by
whistleblowing.

Community Investment

The Group insists on the philosophy of giving back to the
society. Apart from the continual and robust operation of
business development, the Group will make active efforts to
show the service spirit of our core corporate values, integrate
the ideas of community concern and participation, and continue
devoting to all kinds of education, cultural and social welfare
activities.

k&S
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THAEREAMEBRONG  BAKREFERR
TELRE -
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Volunteer Services

The Group is committed to performing its corporate civic
responsibility, of which volunteer service is an important part. In
view of this, the Group has particularly set up a volunteer team,
to cooperate with the Agency for Volunteer Service in charity
work and return to the society. During the financial year of
2020/2021, the Group arranged volunteers to provide gratuitous
treatment to residents. At different festivals, the Group also
offers laba congee, ginger tea with brown sugar, congee with
mungbean and glutinous rice balls to improve neighbourly and
community relations.

In the coming year, the Group will input more resources in
various education, cultural and social welfare activities, actively
participate in community activities, and express the Group's
concern of and return to local communities.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during the financial
year of 2020/2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE B - He2kEsfEikEmiNsE
REPORTING GUIDE AND REFERENCE

A. Environmental Reference in the Report
A. BIR rEESE
A1. Emissions Page#
Al BB H¥#
The policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a 40-44

significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

FRERMABEREBER MKRLHHOEES AERBEEEREVHNELESZNR
RRETHETAGEAZENHBERZLRM -

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. N/A
KPI AT1EE R ) 18 8 [2 48 B8 B i8R - i A
KPI' A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per unit 40-43

of production volume, per facility).

KPlAI2BEREBHENRE ABE)RZE(WMNEESEN - BERKGETE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per unit of N/A
production volume, per facility). ~iE A
KPIAIIFMEAEEREEMAE A E)REE(MNEBEEE N - BHER M

H)o

KPI' A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity (e.g. per 44

unit of production volume, per facility).

KPIATAFTEAEEREEYHAE U E) REE(WNWASESEMN - SHEZMEE
H)o

KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 40-44

KPI AMSH MR IEEMENEIERFTEHRR -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 44
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

KPI AL BEREERBEEEZMN S L BEELENEBEMAEKR -
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A2. Use of Resources

A2. EREH

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERERBIERIR  KREAMERMEDOBE -

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

KPI A2 R B DMEER, /SBEER(WE  RIB)BEEUTETRER
HEREE(NASERF  SBRMHHE) -

KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
KPI A2 KB REZE (MABESEM BERMEHE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A2 3% 3t 6 IR (£ A3 3k s 5t &l R ARG X R ©

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A2.4 % it SR EUGE A KR LR BEMRBE - U RREFBKRGEFTERMAERR -

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

KPI A58 mFTABEREMBMNEE UEABE)R(NER) BEEEMNIEE -

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

A3. BERKXKAER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BEZETAHRBERRARERENEAZENBR -

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

KPI AL R E D HRERRARERNEAZENERNERAFRTENTT
Ejj o
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B. Social Reference in the Report
B. & rEESE
B1. Employment Page#
B1. & & HE#
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 50-53

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERAFTMNRE BEREA TERHE B FTERE 2t REBUR
HiFBEENNBRREETHETABEAZENEBERMROINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region. 50-51
KPI BLIRIER - BIBRE « FhARNLMESDHEE B -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 53
KPI B1.23Z 1Rl - FlcA A R EE DMEERKLE -

B2. Health and Safety Paget#
B2. BEHEZE BH4H
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations 54

that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FHARRZE2TIHEREMABEEERLBENLCENBRRLETHETABERX
TENEBERRROIINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. N/A
KPI B2 1R TERIE ML T M)A B b K o T B
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. N/A
KPI B2 2 TBERTERE » T B
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 54

they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B23f Ml AR A R @ RE L 21816 - U RMEBATRERE -

B3. Development and Training Page#
B3. & KIEII HE#
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at 54-55

work. Description of training activities.

BRRAEEBRITIEREMNME R RENERE - HAFIED -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category N/A
(e.g. senior management, middle management). T A

KPI B3R MR MEERAI(INERERE  PREEEZ) A INZIEEANL °

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and N/A
employee category. TiE A
KPI B3.2iZ MR REEEFIE D BEEETKIINFIORE -
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B4. Labour Standards
B4. & T %8|

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
ERAMEET RS TINRREBTHRTAGEAZENHBEEZRNAOD
AR -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

KPI B4 1# sttt i FRAE B M FE h A BE R B T KRR 85 T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

KPI B4 2L fE 3 3R E RIB N B IR B RE B PT SR ENEy 2 5K -

B5. Supply Chain Management
BS. L ESEE R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

EEHEENORREMEERBEE -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
KPI BS. 1Rt [R &l 5 M B B A -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
KPI BS.2#t G RARE AL R E 0] - MERTERAENNHEREE  ULEH
BHRRITRERTE -

B6. Product Responsibility
B6. EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
FRMREHERNMRENEERELZS  BEE RELKMEBEFEARBRITENOR
RRETHETABEAZENHBEIRZRAONER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

KPIBLIEER D BEXEMmBHFTRLHEREAMAELKMNBED L -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

KPI B6.2 BEANERMRGHOIRFHBURESH T -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
KPI B6.3% it B2 4 i MARFE A B ER BN ED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
KPI Bé .4k it & & 1% 7E 3B 12 2 B dm B AR

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they
are implemented and monitored.

KPI B6.5H L BEE B REMRLEBHE  URBEBRITRERL X -
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Page#
H8#

56

56

56
Page#
H8#
56-57
N/A
A iE B

N/A
NiE R

Page#
HE8#

57-62

N/A
A~ B

N/A
NiE R

61

N/A
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B7. Anti-corruption

B7. RE 5

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

BERAMLEMBE R HMAFRAREORRNMETHERTAGEAZENRBAE
REBROINEFR -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes
of the cases.

KPI BZIRERAANH ETAX AL EEREIEFENESHARMOBE KA
HR e

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.

KPI B7.2f et fr giE e R R BB - U RHEBATRER A -

B8. Community Investment

BS. HE&RE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

FHNHR2ERTREEMNELEFTENEREEB EDEERLRMNENK

ﬁi o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e. g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
KPIBSI1Z T ERER(INHE  RESE SBITHF K @F X 8B7F)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

KPI B82EETHIEMBAE R (W) -
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the financial year, which
includes a fair review of the Group's business, a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, an
analysis of the Group's financial key performance, particulars of
important events affecting the Group during the financial year
and after the end of the financial year, and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 9 to
16 and the Group's environmental policies and performance can
be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 36 to 69 of this annual report. The contents of the
abovementioned sections form parts of the business review as
contained in this report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the
management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations which may have a material impact on the business
and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in all material
respects during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a
caring environment to employees and emphasised the personal
development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group aims to continually provide quality services
and consumption experiences to its customers and establish
cooperation strategy with its suppliers.
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Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporate environment that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact on
the environment by reducing its electricity consumption and
encouraging recycling of office supplies and other materials.
For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 36 to 69 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 103 to 179.

TRANSFER OF RESERVES

Loss attributable to shareholders before dividends, of
HK$8,621,000 (2020: Profit attributable to shareholders before
dividends: HK$13,213,000) have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2010: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$74,379,000 (2020:
HK$85,481,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
180 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 24(b)
to the financial statements, in which there were no movements
during the year.
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There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
from the major customers and suppliers during the year ended
31 March 2021 is as follows:

BE-T--—F=A=t—RAILEE AATNR
HAMMBARBEBE HERBOAAR
ETES

BLrEER

WAl SR e R E BB E R
X BEAATARLIARERERSHE
I -

B IEH R &=
EELTNEREASEAATNBEMERT
fa B4 TR

FEEFRMER

TERPRHERREBE T —F=A=1+—
BEFEAGAREHEERRBZERNT

Percentage of
the Group's
total purchases

Percentage of
the Group's
total revenue

- L EAKE
wERASHL RBRAEESL
The largest customer BEAEP 13%
Five largest customers in aggregate RAREFPEH 19%
The largest supplier SN Y] 86%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHtENE K 96%

During the year, other than Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd
(which accounted for approximately 12.9% of the total sales for
the year ended 31 March 2021), in which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
and Mr. Zheng Jiang indirectly hold 85.0% interests and 10.0%
interests, respectively, and Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital, which
is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a 30%-controlled
company held by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang (which accounted for
approximately 5.5% of the total sales for the year ended 31
March 2021), none of the Directors, their close associates or
Shareholders who to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company
has any beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
(appointed as the chairman with effect from 24 July 2020)

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Mr. Liang Songluan
(appointed with effect from 30 October 2020)

Ms. Shen Guoying

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
(resigned as the chairman and re-designated as a
non-executive director with effect from 24 July 2020;
resigned with effect from 30 October 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation.

Accordingly, Mr. Liang Songluan, Mr. Bau Siu Fung and Ms. Lou
Aidong will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM"). All Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO"), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief
executive were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein, or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules were
as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company

EERRESTRAERRKRG - HERD
REREETFZEBERAR

RIZB-—F=ZA=1t—H ARAEREEFEK
RRTHRABRAREREEABEBER(EXE
RESRAEGRMN(FEZRMEGRD]) EXVE)
2B AERORERIETEAEREESFR
HIE R G EXVERETR8 D B A K & AR 7] M B
RAfrziEm kR (BRREEZRMEGRDIZ
ERXB/KEFHESRERTBRARES
ZHEDPORR)  HREFF R E G352
RABAZGR Az ELCMZERRRE X
RIE LR R PrEAR T RIZA A& AR A R ik
Rz R EORBIT

REAREBZEZROREAROGZHR

Approximately
Percentage of

Name of Name of Capacity/ Number and the issued
associated Corporation Directors Nature of interest class of shares share capital
ERITREAZ
MBEE S EEnAR 5/ ERtE BROBERER BREDH
Huiri Limited (Note 1) Zheng Jiang  Interest in a controlled 0.1 10%
corporation ordinary shares
EAEREBRDR A ZT) & T RELEES RN
China Prosper Enterprise Holding ~ Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 1,000 10%
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) corporation ordinary shares
China Prosper Enterprise Holding £ T REEEER Rl

Co., Ltd. (#7:#1)

Note:

1. Ze Hong Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Jiang, was
interested in (i) 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, being the
holding company of the Company; and (ii) 10% of the issued share capital
of China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd., being a fellow subsidiary of
Huiri Limited. Mr. Zheng Jiang was deemed to be interested in the shares
of Huiri Limited and China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. as held
by Ze Hong Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short positions

required to be recorded in the register kept under section 352
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of
persons other than the chief executive of the Company who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FERRRRORBERG 2 EE R KX
B

R-E-—G=A=+—H RALFRES
SRS EBEEE 2 BRMATRE T
FIA+ CRAF BB THA BRI RARF B
A ARBIRR A o B AR 1 3B T B
EXVEE2R3H HE X AART BB B
ZHRBHKRMT

Percentage
of the issued

Long position share capital

Capacity/ in ordinary (approximately)
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest shares held (Note 1)
2REITRA
BEEEER Ba (% Q)
BREZES B EEME 2R (1)
Zheng Jian Jiang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 219,950,000 58.66%
corporation
BLET (ffaE2) Z A E R
Ze Hui Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 219,950,000 58.66%
corporation
EEAERRAR (M iE2) XEEEER
Huiri Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 219,950,000 58.66%
ERERER AR (K22 EmiEAA
He Yi Ju (Note 3) Interest of spouse 219,950,000 58.66%
Al Z 5 (1 7#3) B 48 # 2=
Xu Xingen Beneficial owner 32,400,000 8.64%
®ER Em#EAA
Chen Yongan Beneficial owner 21,600,000 5.76%
fR oK &2 EmBEAA
Notes: b e -
1. On the basis of 374,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 1. ERARRAR-_ZTE=-Z—F=ZA=Z=+—BBE %77
2021. 374,984,000 A% 19 °

Annual Report 2021 £ 3R

75



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

2. Huiri Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is owned as to 90% by Ze Hui Limited (which is in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang) and 10% by
Ze Hong Limited (which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zheng Jiang, a current executive Director). Each of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang
and Ze Hui Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Huiri Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. He Yi Ju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang. Under the SFO, Ms.
He Yi Ju was taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which

Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang was interested.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short positions
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336
of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report
of the Directors, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
or any of its controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director or a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 March 2021
or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report of the Directors, at no time during the year, the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or its subsidiaries. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any right
to subscribe for the shares or debentures of the Company or
its subsidiaries or had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

For the year ended 31 March 2021 the Board is not aware of any
business or interests of the then Directors and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which
any such person had or might have with the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results and individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors, employees and other eligible persons.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 2(p) to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the initial public offering of the shares in
the Company (the "IPO") amounted to approximately HK$105.6
million, all had been utilised as at 30 September 2020.
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As disclosed in the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 September 2019, the unutilised net proceeds as at
30 September 2019 amounted to approximately HK$7.5 million
(the "Unutilised Net Proceeds”), which has been designated for
the research of business expansion, including but not limited to
clubbing business and property management business, while all
of the remaining net proceeds from the IPO had been utilised
in accordance with the revised allocation plan as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 June 2017.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
31 March 2020 (the “"Announcement”), the Board had further
changed the use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds, such that
they may also be used for general corporate purposes, in
addition to supporting research on business expansion when
suitable opportunities arise. As at 30 September 2020, all of
the Unutilised Net Proceeds had been utilised as follows in
accordance with the revised allocation plan as set out in the
Announcement:

BN ARRBE_T—NAEALA=ZTHIEAE
ARHHREMRFE RS- AFLA=1H
MM ABARMGSRIEFR(HAKBBAMGHNE
FREDAORISEEE L BTHAREXHREN
RBEETERREMEBLYEES B ER) -
MEXAREEMERBFENREINTRE
ARARBHAE-_Z—+ENA-+_HHNAE
a2 e E] DT EI FLABA -

MIMARRAPR T _FEF=A=+—HH
AREMRAEDHEE EFSHRABDAMEG
REFENAEBEETED  RUBRREE

BEORERARIFHEGARTTIN  ZFX

BRERE—RARAR BE_T_TFAN
A=1tH FERARBHMABFIAFECRE

NEFRFZEETOEASIZATHEESA

Amount of net proceeds utilised

EERNAETAFE

Designated
amount of net
proceeds under
the revised

Amount of
net proceeds

allocation plan As at During the six As at  unutilised as at
as set out in the 1 April months ended 30 30 September 30 September
Use of proceeds gkl Announcement 2020  September 2020 2020 2020
RENEHNE BE R-B-%F
ZRBATIEEE R et 23 hA=+A
AERFRHEEE st 23 RAZTEHN R-2-%% R
REZEESE mA-A ~EA NA=1R FEREEE
HKS million HKS million HKS$ million HKS million HKS million
BEAL BEAT EL BEAL BEAT
Research of business expansion including  EHARHE  REETR
but not limited to clubbing business REFMEBRNZER
and property management business, EBR-RAARGE
and general corporate purposes 107 8.8 19 107 -
The net proceeds from the placing of new shares of the ANAREEF XD RIE FHELAS41EE

Company were approximately HK$54.1 million, which had been
used in the manner as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 July 2017. As at 30 September 2020, the
Group had utilised all HK$54.1 million of such net proceeds for
working capital and acquisition of Mini Club.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 3 January 2014 which shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date, subject to early
termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to Eligible Participants (as defined below) and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to the following persons (“Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives, or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including any non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or

any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, the

assessment criteria of which are:

(1) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(2)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(3) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(4)  length of service or contribution to the Group.
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The Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
Shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be allotted or
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as
defined in the Prospectus)), being 30,000,000 Shares. The total
number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme to an Eligible Participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant on or before
the relevant acceptance date. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from
that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted.

The Share Option Scheme shall expire on 2 January 2024.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2021, 2,745,000 options had
been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 1 April 2020 and throughout the year ended 31 March
2021, there was no option outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
27,255,000 Shares representing 7.27% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity
(as defined
Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 March 2021 and as at the date of this report
of the Directors, pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify

provision in section 469 of the Companies

the Directors against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which any of them may incur by reason of any act
done in execution of their duty in their respective offices, except
such as they shall incur through their own fraud or dishonesty.
The Company has maintained insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the
Directors arising out of corporate activities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the Group
were conducted during the year on a continuing basis for which
relevant announcements had been made by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

(@) Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 28 December 2020)
On 1 December 2020, Ningbo AUX entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the “2020 Framework Agreements”) with
each of (i) Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Company
Limited (“Ningbo AUX Healthcare”) (the 2020 Framework
Agreement |”); (i) AUX Group Company Limited ("AUX
Group”) (the 2020 Framework Agreement I1”); (iii) Ningbo
Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Sanxing”) (the
“2020 Framework Agreement llI"); (iv) Ningbo AUX Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX Real Estate”) (the "2020
Framework Agreement V"), and (v) Ningbo AUX Electric
Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo AUX Electric”) (the “2020 Framework
Agreement V") (parties to each agreement entering into
such agreement for itself and as trustee for the benefit
of its subsidiaries from time to time) for the provision by
Ningbo AUX of maintenance, cleaning and/or security
services for offices, industrial park facilities, car park units,
residential properties and/or commercial properties.
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As at the date of the above agreements, (i) AUX Group was
in aggregate directly held as to 100% by two companies,
each of which was held as to 85.00% by Mr. Zheng Jian
Jiang ("Mr. JJ Zheng"), a controlling shareholder of the
Company indirectly holding approximately 58.66% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company; (ii)
Ningbo Sanxing was in aggregate directly held as to
approximately 52.75% by Mr. JJ Zheng and the parties
acting in concert with him (including Mr. Zheng Jiang and
AUX Group); (iii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in aggregate
held as to approximately 87.84% by Mr. JJ Zheng,
including direct interests of 25.00% and indirect interests
of approximately 62.84% held through various entities;
(iv) Ningbo AUX Healthcare was a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ningbo Sanxing; and (v) Ningbo AUX Real
Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00% by Mr. JJ Zheng.
Accordingly, each of AUX Group, Ningbo Sanxing, Ningbo
AUX Electric, Ningbo AUX Healthcare and Ningbo AUX
Real Estate was an associate (being a 30%-controlled
company) of Mr. JJ Zheng as a controlling shareholder
of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the 2020 Framework Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the 2020 Framework Agreements is effective for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. Further details of each of the 2020
Framework Agreements are disclosed below:

(i) 2020 Framework Agreement |

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement |, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property housekeeping,
transportation and other ancillary services to Ningbo
AUX Healthcare and/or its subsidiaries from time
to time for a term commencing on 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB26.8 million, RMB36.4 million and RMB44.4
million for the years ending 31 December 2021, 2022
and 2023, respectively.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

W]

2020 Framework Agreement I/

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement Il, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices, commercial
properties and car park units occupied by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries. In addition, Ningbo
AUX shall provide pre-sale managements services,
sales offices management services and unsold
industrial park units property management services
in respect of industrial park facilities owned by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for a
term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall be
subject to the annual cap of RMB5.4 million, RMB11.0
million and RMB13.1 million for the years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

2020 Framework Agreement Il

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement lll, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices and car
park units occupied by Ningbo Sanxing and/
or its subsidiaries from time to time for a term
commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on 31
December 2023. The above transactions shall be
subject to the annual cap of RMBO0.5 million, RMBO0.5
million and RMBO0.5 million for the years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

2020 Framework Agreement IV

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement IV, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including management, maintenance, cleaning and
security services in connection with the development
projects of residential properties and shopping
complexes launched by Ningbo AUX Real Estate
and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for a term
commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB37.2 million,
RMB50.1 million and RMB54.8 million for the
years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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(v) 2020 Framework Agreement V

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement V, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including mainly cleaning services in connection with
the industrial park facilities occupied by Ningbo AUX
Electric and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for a
term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The above transactions shall be
subject to the annual cap of RMB3.8 million, RMB7.4
million and RMB7.8 million for the years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company'’s circular dated 11 December 2018)

On 15 October 2018, Ningbo AUX and Ningbo AUX Real
Estate (for itself and as trustee for the benefit of its
subsidiaries from time to time) entered into an agreement
(the “2018 Supplemental Agreement”) to amend certain
terms of the framework agreement entered into on 7
November 2016 for the provision of various types of
residential property management services by Ningbo
AUX Property to Ningbo AUX Real Estate (the “2016
Framework Agreement”). Furthermore, Ningbo AUX
entered into a property management services framework
agreement (the “2018 Framework Agreement [|”) with
AUX Group (for itself and as trustee for the benefit
of its subsidiaries from time to time) and a property
management services framework agreement (the “2018
Framework Agreement IlI”) with Ningbo Sanxing (for itself
and as trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries from
time to time) respectively on 15 October 2018 for the
provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance and cleaning
services for offices, car park units and/or commercial
properties. As at the date of the above agreements,
Ningbo AUX Real Estate and AUX Group were companies
each held as to 85% by Mr. JJ Zheng, and Ningbo
Sanxing was a 30%-controlled company held by Mr. JJ
Zheng. As such, Ningbo AUX Real Estate, AUX Group
and Ningbo Sanxing were associates of Mr. JJ Zheng and
connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the 2016 Framework Agreement as amended by the 2018
Supplemental Agreement (the “Amended 2016 Framework
Agreement”), the 2018 Framework Agreement | and the
2018 Framework Agreement Il constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the Amended 2016 Framework Agreement, the
2018 Framework Agreement | and the 2018 Framework
Agreement Il are disclosed below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Amended 2016 Framework Agreement

Under the Amended 2016 Framework Agreement,
Ningbo AUX shall provide management and
maintenance services in respect of residential
properties and facilities of property development
projects of Ningbo AUX Real Estate before
delivery, sales offices management services, unsold
residential units property management services and
vacant retail shop property management services to
Ningbo AUX Real Estate for a term commencing on
1 January 2017 and ending on 31 December 2020.
The above transactions shall be subject to the annual
cap of RMB34.0 million, RMB30.0 million, RMB47.7
million and RMB55.6 million for the years ended 31
December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively.

2018 Framework Agreement |

Pursuant to the 2018 Framework Agreement |,
Ningbo AUX shall provide office and commercial
property management services and car park
management services to the AUX Group for a
term commencing on the date of approval by the
independent shareholders at the extraordinary
meeting held to approve such framework agreement
(the "EGM"), i.e. 27 December 2018, and ending on
31 December 2020. The annual cap in respect of
the above transactions is RMBO0.3 million, RMB3.7
million and RMB3.7 million for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively.

2018 Framework Agreement Il

In accordance with the 2018 Framework Agreement
I, Ningbo AUX shall provide office property
management services and car park management
services to Ningbo Sanxing for a term commencing
on the date of approval by the independent
shareholders at the EGM, i.e. 27 December 2018,
and ending on 31 December 2020. The annual cap
in respect of the above transactions is RMB0.04
million, RMBO0.4 million and RMBO0.4 million for the
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020,
respectively.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 10 April 2018)

On 14 February 2018, Ningbo AUX as supplier and Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital Company Limited (“Ningbo Mingzhou
Hospital”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a
30%-controlled company held indirectly by Mr. JJ Zheng,
as customer entered into a framework service agreement
(the “Framework Service Agreement”) in relation to
the provision of property housekeeping, transportation
and other ancillary services by Ningbo AUX to Ningbo
Mingzhou Hospital and/or its subsidiaries from time to
time for a term of three years from 1 April 2018 to 31
March 2021. The annual cap in respect of the fees under
the Framework Service Agreement is RMB21 million for
the year ended 31 March 2019, RMB26 million for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and RMB27 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The Framework Service Agreement
was superseded in all respects by 2020 Framework
Agreement | when it came into operation on 1 January
2021.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms or better and according to the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter to the Board containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group and confirming the
matters set out in rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3

(c)

BERERS (HUAATAHAE=ZE-N
EFNATANEBERFTEE)
RZE—NFE-_A+WMA  r EEETH(E
A Em) B FRMER AR AR ([E
AN EE BT 1) (— M B BB BR VT %k AE R 4%
BINZERAFNEEEZEWBRAR 1
BEP)RIMAE R IR 7% ([1E R R
FED) o NA B RS HT R R AR N &
Bl SETEHONE R REDER
R BRREMEEBRS  FHAEEZ
E-NFNA—HEZ-ZTE-_—F=A=
T—HIE=F - EXRRBHZEETREZR
—E-NF=ZA=1+—H ZZTE=ZTF=
A=+—HBERZZ=Z—4F=A=+—H1t
FENFELREADIAARK2IESE
T ARB20BELRAREIBEETT °
—ECEFERBE RZE—F—AH
—HAMKEZERBERREHZERE
K #E o

BYFATEFCENLAFEBER
FUERZERDINASE - RATEE
BBRFE - RARERIEEGR > I
REAFABZEREFTAKRREER
mZ BB R L

ARBIZEMEZREREEEZELRE
R 300058 (BRI BRI EHMBAE
BMEERNAIINZZEBELZRE] Y2BEE
SR ASEM 2 BEIFHPE7405 AR
ER MR BEBREIZNZEE
I AEBHERERSIELR
& o RHAMEMESTHHERBER K
. ERHINARAEEMEEGERE
REBHZERREmITER ETWHRA
FIAASOIEFTE FIE - XA R 2 MEE R AT
REZEA Rz &K -



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company
has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
those related party transactions which constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
which are set out in the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 176 to 177. The other related party
transactions set out therein constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are exempt
from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the board

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AUX International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AUX
International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 96 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ("the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
this matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED)

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment

FEME - BERREZRE

HREITSEEHA

Refer to accounting policy note 2(i)(ii) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI LB E M E20)i) R A& EEN L2

The key audit matter

BREEITEE

Among the Group’s businesses are a club and three
restaurant and bar outlets in Hong Kong. One of the
restaurant and bar outlets has been closed during the year
ended 31 March 2021.
EREEZEBRDIRERLKE MR ZHEBKEREF
Ee BT —F=A=+—BILFE Hh-—REEX
BEPITE R -

At 31 March 2021, the net book value of the Group's
property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leased properties, amounted to HK$15.2 million,
HK$11.3 million of which related to the operation of clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets.
RZZE-_—F=ZA=+—H X EXENDE BELXE
(BREAEHEDEELENEREEE)NREFERIS2AS
B HPNIEEBTHELLE M 2B MBEBPEERR
£ -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded a
segment loss of HK$12.1 million in respect of the operation
of clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets. The
current economic environment and prolonged impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 and hence weak
consumer sentiment in the clubbing and catering sectors
have created uncertainties in relation to the financial
performance of the Group's operation of clubbing business
and restaurant and bar outlets. Consequently, management
considered that impairment indicators of property, plant and
equipment existed as at 31 March 2021.
HE_TZ-_—F=ZA=+—-RHIFE - BEXEERFTBELE
- EBRRBEMEERHGESBERI2ZIAEET - &
BEINEEREURB-Z-_ZFUHNERSREBREED
FEYE RHEBEERNSMEEREELEKS  BH &
EHgr ERNREBEEPFIEEBNMBEREERIEEM -
it - EBERR WE BERRBER-_T_—F=A=
T-—RFERETR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONERZSE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the
following:

BMFEDE BEARXRBZRENETREF
BETHIFE:

e evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the allocation of property, plant
and equipment to each CGU;

e TEERENRECELBEMUNERAUALD
¥ BELARBIEEZRSCELBMLD

B

e assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which
included evaluating the impairment
indicators identified by management and
assessing the impairment assessment
methodology adopted with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e HAYTEREBEEMNMENGHERER B
S2R[ITGFTEANER . HEEEH

YR (E B R N R R B0 BB BT ik 77 R 1T AT

1B ;

e obtaining and inspecting the value in use
calculations prepared by management
and on which the directors’ impairment
assessments of the property, plant and
equipment were based;

s EMYREEEEMERAERAHME
TR 55 2 3% 6 HE 1T RUE AT A B DA L R IR B (%
REETER:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HREITSEEHA

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

AR BERREZREGE)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(i)(ii) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI LB E M E20)i) R A& EEN L2
The key audit matter

BREEITEE

Management performed
property, plant and equipment for each separately
identifiable cash-generating unit ("CGU") with indication of
impairment using the value in use model and compared the
aggregate carrying values of the respective CGUs, to which
the property, plant and equipment had been allocated, with
the net present values of the cash flow forecasts for each
CGU being assessed. Based on the impairment assessments,
impairment losses of HK$11.5 million were recognised on
property, plant and equipment for the year.
ERECHRACEAEBEREYAREFRNZAIEZNR S
ELEBM(REELEMDOYE  BERREBETRER
i UHYWE BEAREBEESENHBERSELSLNE
FHERFLENSRASELABURSRNERANFRELE
THE - RIBBENE - MAFEDE - BERREERR
EEBENSEEET -

impairment assessments of

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts involves
the exercise of significant management judgement, in
particular in estimating future revenue, future operating
costs, the growth rate and the discount rate applied.
FHRRSREBANGRIREREENEAHE - LEER
AERBIRA S RRGERA - BREEARAOFTRE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONERZSE

challenging the key assumptions and
estimates adopted by management in
the discounted cash flow forecasts by
comparing the significant inputs, which
included future revenue, future operating
costs and the growth rate with historical
performance, and externally derived data,
which included projected inflation rates
published by external research institutes;

FRACBRERBARE  BERAKREKA
RRGEHA - BEKLERTNIERERIN
MAIGEIE - BEINBHAREBEMOTE
TREE HEEEAEBAFRRERE
FrPTER e B B B (A AT IR B B &

assessing the discount rate applied in
the discounted cash flow forecasts by
benchmarking against those of other
companies in the same industry;
SRATEMEER  FEERIFTRRES
MERRANTEEX:



Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HREITSEEHA

Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)

AR BERREZREGE)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(i)(ii) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI LTI E20)i) R AR & EEN L2
The key audit matter

MREEGHEE

We identified assessing impairment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter because of the significant
management judgement required in making assumptions
and estimations, which can be inherently uncertain and
subject to management bias.

BB EDE BELRBZRERTABREAEER
THRREFEEBRE LGS SIREBRENE XL - BEH
MEEEE I THEMLRARXEERBZIRITFMTE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETONERZSE

evaluating the historical accuracy of
management’s value in use calculations
by comparing the forecasts at the end of
the previous financial year for revenue,
operating costs and the growth rate with
the actual outcomes in the current year
and investigating reasons for any significant
differences between the forecasts and
actual results; and

FRBEEERE LEMBRFRERERA - &
ERAREBRENFAINEEFEREES
RETHE  FAEEBEEEMTENR
REENERTE THERIEERER
ZAEREMERAZENREA: &

Obtaining from management sensitivity
analyses on both the discount rates
and future revenue assumptions and
considering the resulting impact on the
impairment assessments and whether there
were any indicators of management bias in
the selection of assumptions.

RS ETEE YT IR R R OR R A 1T R
EoH  tEBREHEMEFHEEENTE -
AERBEBRRBREAEMNERERR
EERR
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BIUREMBE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

94

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR

- 5

BREBMRESFESMBRRABNERE
(#&)

- HESEARAEERHERONEE

R - RIZPMERMERE - BT
REFERFERNBERABNEANEE
M EmARE Y SERENFELE
RRNTELEEARRE MREMARBAEE
BEATHEEN - AALEEZBENRSE T
REEAEIERAMBHRRTOMER
BE - -BEBROBRESR  ARMEE
BRIFEBREER - HAINEmEENZ
RN RS A FTES BETRE o AT
AREERBERALESR EERETER

= g AL
BagE o

- HESEMBHmEROEEIRTA R

MAR  BREEE  URGEAEMBHRRE
BHRERBRRXZMER -

EEENERREKIDNIBESR
ERRR  BENETRE  UWEHERE
HHHREREXRER - RMEAE BE£EE
ATEAR C EEMNT  c HMAEMER
EEZRHEME -

SREMEBERN  RFEEFZERERT I
MEFEE KELZHE BEREAERS 8
TR PSP 8B R BB AR B Y (T KRR
fa -

BMEMNEFZESRBH  SARMEH
EREBBELMEMNABEREEER WA
BEBENEAEMER RS ERFIE LR
PREREMEMEIE - AR ABRE BN
BB FTRBOTE N BiEEEER) -



Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUREMBE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tak Kei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_ A=+ -HUEFEUBTETR)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5E FET FAET
Revenue Uy & 4 302,907 339,972
Other revenue H iy W 5 19,034 11,088
Other net (loss)/income Hih(F548), W A FE 5 6 (5,996) 12,616
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK (4,064) (12,594)
Property cleaning expenses MEFTERET (64,965) (59,582)
Staff costs BT A 7(b) (129,949) (156,096)
Depreciation and amortisation PreE & By 7(d) (22,620) (24,612)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥ & RHBHREZ (3,853) (9,438)
Impairment losses on goodwill B E &R (7,261) —
Impairment losses on property, WE BERRERE
plant and equipment &5 18 (11,486) (1,823)
Advertising and marketing expenses EENEHEAX (1,327) (4,198)
Utilities expenses IKEE (8,397) (12,300)
Repair and maintenance expenses HwIENEERS (17,392) (17,096)
Other operating expenses HEMEERs 7(c) (35,187) (33,815)
Profit from operations KEEERRN 9,444 32,122
Finance costs R & B A 7(a) (2,386) (2,956)
Profit before taxation R B A% R 7 7,058 29,166
Income tax FTi3 %% 8(a) (15,679) (15,953)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EE)ERN (8,621) 13,213
(Loss)/profit per share SR(ER),BH 11
Basic and diluted EXK#E (2.3) centsE 1l 3.5 cents/B 1l

S5103Z179E M M EEHE AR X B 075 B3 0 — 5

The notes on pages 103 to 179 form part of these financial
statements. e

96 AUX International Holdings Limited / B % S BB Z BB R AR



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeRmkEMEENER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_ A=+ -HUEFEUBTETR)

2021 2020
=¥ F —ZT-TF
$'000 $'000
TERT FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER)HBA (8,621) 13,213
Other comprehensive income for the year HRHEM2EWKE
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ B & AJgEE T 7 H E 187 < B
profit or loss: g :
Exchange differences on translation of the BREWNBARI M mE 2 E
financial statements of subsidiaries HEBMTEXBBZE)
(with nil tax effect) 15,938 (15,087)
Total comprehensive income for the year FrRZEKEHETE 7,317 (1,874)

The notes on pages 103 to 179 form part of these financial

statements.

g7 °

FI3R79EM M EBRAZEM KRR — &
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RSB RO R

At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZF_—F=A=t—HAWUBTER)

2021 2020
—E=-— —E-FTF
Note $'000 $'000
bz THET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NMRE 12 15,237 17,824
Intangible assets | A E 13 46,826 50,261
Goodwill BmE 14 57,680 60,432
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE 23(b)(ii) 3,020 2,097
122,763 130,614
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 16 519 927
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A e U FRIE 17 89,664 92,332
Current tax recoverable A Y =] BN ER R 3R 23(a) 3,553 —
Restricted bank deposits SZREIRITIER 18(a) 3,550 2,586
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREFERS 18(a) 227,198 206,735
324,484 302,580
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables Bo5 N H A FER KA 19 117,032 100,687
Contract liabilities SEHEE 20 59,675 45,349
Lease liabilities HEARE 21 14,285 21,054
Amount due to the controlling & A~ 452 R IR R FRIE
shareholder 22 4,373 2,435
Current tax payable FE A BD HA R 18 23(a) 7,013 8,239
202,378 177,764
Net current assets REBEEFE 122,106 124,816
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRBARE 244,869 255,430
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Loan from the controlling shareholder wEERIEEE R 22 85,266 109,165
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 8,759 1,075
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIBEE 23(b)(ii) 15,153 16,816
109,178 127,056
NET ASSETS EEZFE 135,691 128,374
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR K

At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZF_—F=A=t—HAWUBTER)

2021 2020
== —E-FTF
Note $'000 $'000
bz FH&xT FET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRGE
Share capital R& s 24(b) 3,750 3,750
Reserves 1 131,941 124,624
TOTAL EQUITY EEBE 135,691 128,374

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 June 2021

RZEZ—FXNAZ+TILAKEETSHAERRKE

RETIE -

Chan Hon Ki
BROEH
Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 103 to 179 form part of these financial
statements.

Shen Guoying
CIES
Director

EF

FI03RN79EM M E B A FHH MR — 8

e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEREEX

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T-—F=A=1t-RALFECABLET)

Share Share Capital  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity

RAE  BROBE EARE EERE EXRR RitEE  ERAHE
(note (note (note (note

24(c)(1) 24(c)i) 24(c)(iv)) 24(c)ii))
g3 (it (B &t g3
24(c)(i)) 24(c)(i) 2(c)iv)  24(c)(iii)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THT FTExT FTHET THT FTExT FTHT FTExT
Balance at 1 April 2019 R-E-NENA-B2EH 3750 177,000 2,500 2213 (1,390) (53,825 130,248
Changes in equity for the year #HZ-Z-ZF=A=+-A
ended 31 March 2020: LEEZREEE:
Profit for the year F R F — — — — — 13,213 13,213
Other comprehensive income FREMEENR R
for the year — — — — (15,087) — (15,087)
Total comprehensive income FNEEKELER
for the year — — — — (15,087) 13,213 (1,874)
Transferred to statutory reserve BAKTERE — — — 5,063 — (5,063) —
Balance at 31 March 2020 and R=-Z-ZF=HA=+-HRK
1 April 2020 “E-TEMA-AzEH 3,750 177,000 2,500 7,276 (16,477) (45,675) 128,374
Changes in equity for the year HZ-Z--f=A=+-H
ended 31 March 2021: LEECHEEET:
Loss for the year FAER - - - - - (8,621) (8,621)
Other comprehensive income FREMPER S
for the year = — = = 15,938 = 15,938
Total comprehensive income FR2EK=EE
for the year - - - - 15,938 (8,621) 7,317
Transferred to statutory reserve BAKERE = - - 5,137 - (5,137) -
Balance at 31 March 2021 RZZ-Z—-5=A=+—-Hz
F=373 3,750 177,000 2,500 12,413 (539) (59,433) 135,691

o

The notes on pages 103 to 179 form part of these financial 1032 179B WM T K Z S B RER A — [
statements. b2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GOBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z_ A=+ -HUEFEUBTETR)

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 FHET FAT
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation B 5 Bl & A 7,058 29,166
Adjustments for: T I B IE M G EE
Bank interest income AT A B M A 5 (4,946) (6,694)
Finance costs =N 7(a) 2,386 2,956
Depreciation e 7(d) 15,172 17,322
Amortisation B 7(d) 7,448 7,290
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEN B AR M= 6 = (5,000)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment REEE 6 129 544
Gain on termination of lease agreement EHEEmRLLEMm
EHE 2R 7(d) — (19)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 W IA R E
&R 7(0) 4,312 2,751
Impairment losses on other receivables i JE W R IB R E
& 18 7(c) 1,382 —
Impairment losses on goodwill BB EEE 7,261 —
Impairment losses on property, WM BEREZE
plant and equipment REBE 11,486 1,823
COVID-19-related rent concessions T8 15 37 1 i A AR
received HeER 5 (4,382) —
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) EH BB (W)
F R 3,618 (8,204)
Changes in working capital: EEESHEE:
Decrease in inventories FERDEM 408 2,751
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 Kk E AU RIE
other receivables /(35 ) 3,783 47)
Increase in restricted bank deposits = PR 3R 17 15 B hn (721) (313)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5N H At e A
other payables # Gl ) 8,328 (102)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHEBEEM Chd) 10,189 (4,495)
Cash generated from operations KREEEBRE 72,911 39,229
The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") B Xz ZEA R HEFE
income tax paid (TR B PS8 (17,489) (12,376)
PRC withholding tax paid ExfzHBEBEMH (6,531) —
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EXNEBNER (426) —
Net cash generated from operating RETHELRSTE
activities 48,465 26,853
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_Z-—F=ZA=+—BLEFEUGBITERT)

2021 2020
—B-—fF —EF-FF
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5T TERT FET
Investing activities REED
Payment for the purchase of property, plant BEW % - BEMXRE
and equipment INE:N (2,300) (2,660)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE - HE K& #H
and equipment FR1S 318 = 428
Net cash outflow from acquisition of W R T A 72@%@%
subsidiaries o F R — (6,901)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a LEMB AR 2R SR
subsidiary ANFE — 5,000
Interest received B A B 4,946 6,694
Net cash generated from investing RETHEERESEH
activities 2,646 2,561
Financing activities MEEE
Repayment of loan from the controlling BEZERKREERK
shareholder 18(b) (31,248) —
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEHEHEN RS
#B D 18(b) (16,343) (5,022)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEESHNFE
=P 18(b) (448) (713)
Net cash used in financing activities METBIANRESF
- (48,039) (5,735)
Net increase in cash and REeERBAEEEYIEM
cash equivalents 3,072 23,679
Cash and cash equivalents FURERESEEY
at the beginning of the year 206,735 194,855
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEEZ® & g & 17,391 (11,799)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end EFREERBEESEEY
of the year 18(a) 227,198 206,735

The notes on pages 103 to 179 form part of these financial Z103E1798 KM sE KL Z B & A9 — &6

statements. 7 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE B ISR R B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

AUX International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 14 January 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies
Law”). The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) is principally
engaged in operation of clubbing business and restaurant
and bar outlets, and provision of property management
services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

—REHR

B HiERZEEERAR(RARA DR
= -AtHBEREREHSRFE
“E-ZFBIRNEHEERERR
ERERAANERERSEMMA LR —
BMERLERRIA - ARAREME LT
(TXHBINEE]D TERELEGH
BERELBEPEXBEMEHRDEETER
& o

BERXGFTHE
(a) EHEEBH

ZEVHHRRCDEBRE B SR
(ARG AG)EMHZAEE
REEVHERESENTEEHBHR
EEA] BREAAEBZENEE
MBRELL FEGFENTE
BEEAMDRRE) BEARE
FHRAINE B RAURD 2 3B BERE
mE - REUBBRNAT AT M
ERGMERARESFLTHRANTE
MRDZERBEER - A EHE
RAZERSFTHRKENT -

EEGHMAGCRMBER R
RETEAUBHREER > YRA
SEERZ e HEERERKA
HIRFHRR - MIRERBZEFLER
MEBMBREENMIIRAKHE
BRI G HENENEFREE
ERMBHRRARR  GRERH
IR B FE2(c) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B S SRR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
E)

(CAE TR R)

2

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the Amendment to HKFRS
16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, issued by the
HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period.

Other than the Amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period. Impact of the adoption of the amended
HKFRS 16 is discussed below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate
whether certain qualifying rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic (“COVID-19-related rent concessions”)
are lease modifications and, instead, account for
those rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments and applies the practical expedient
to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions
granted to the Group during the year. Consequently,
rent concessions received have been recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurred
(see note 12(c)). There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2020.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

2

EXSFHRERGA
() BHBRZH

(d)

AEECEABEASSMASH
M H BB BRE ERIFE165% (&
RIR)F AR AE 2 BERAE
FHEIR B SRR -
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ME BB REERF 165 (EFTA)
LB

BB B EERE165E (1557 FK)
XL R

FZASEI AR —HAIITRE L
EHEABAESTEBETCEEZA
FEEBEENGERESER
(fCoOVID-9iHE B ERT A
MEET Bk AEABRBEN
ZEHSBETIFEREBITBEA
FERIE -

AEEDREBRSRMZET A
TRERNRAEETESHAES
BT EMmAEERSERERA
TEEARE - AL TESHHES
BEEERNBEE ERTROBHRB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on

a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business

combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit ("CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and

is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

On disposal of a CGU during the vyear, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying property,
plant and equipment (see note 2(h)), are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Over the shorter of their
economic useful life or

— Properties leased for
own use
terms of the leases

— Furniture, fixtures
and equipment

2 to 10 years

— Leasehold
improvements

Over the unexpired
term of leases

— Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use

and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

than goodwill)

— Customer relationships 4 years
(clubbing business)
— Property management contracts 10 years

and related customer
relationships

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(f)
and 2(i)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

AUX International Holdings Limited / B2 5% &7 Bl B2 2 B2 A R 2 3

2

BERETHRERA)
(h HEEEME
tEBERBA

EHEEAME  HEABHVIR
HERNEN ZEENRK 2 REE
RONHERRSZM KRR - b
EU MR AEE - AIRAEREN
HEEENX - YIRERE HE
BEAEEKRATE  MEXHR
BERMERFTE - TREHEALEE
MESHWAIEHENK X TR
EHERBZFED BEHEEL
ZeHEAERSE TR -

VRERERREERKATE
PREBEAEVIGRE  NMEEAE
FIfe BHAS LRI E X &+ 3K
MEEEMEAVIBEEZERAN - R
BABATN FHEEEXATE
FEIRBRBHRIEEEERIRENES
BENZEEME ZHHRA
THREHEZREBRETIHND
WHEEE - FHEEEEBENRA
BRI E R REEIB(RH T
20) B B 5 2() (i) A IR °

fie 5 Bk M R B3| BOR KA E
RES AAKERERGEERE
REMENRAZGEFEE  RE
EFfHEAEERGHABERET
FREE THRREERMELE
g ReEHTEHEAGB-F
HEARBNUETXEHNTE  AIH
ERREE CIREEELAERE
AN ERAEEEZRAERES
AMEB R AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is
not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16
Leases. In such cases, the Group took advantage
of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and bank balances and trade and other
receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:

—  fixed-rate financial

effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

current

—  variable-rate financial assets:

effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

For all other financial

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days or 360 days
past due depending on whether the financial
asset is related to clubbing and restaurant
and bar outlets operations or property
management services. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;
— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
credit rating (if

external or internal

available);
— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument'’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(s)(v) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

— significant financial difficulties of the

debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(i)

(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and

in the
statement of financial

— investments in subsidiaries
Company's

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit

losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(iii)

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(i)(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business or in the form
of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(s)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(1)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

M

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the
Group under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme as defined contribution retirement
plan in respect of the operations in Hong
Kong. The employer’s monthly contributions to
the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of each
employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contribution relating to the staff in the PRC
are made to the PRC local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC.

The cost of all these schemes is charged
to profit or loss of the Group for the years
concerned and the assets of all these schemes
are held separately from those of the Group.

Income tax
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

income taxes that arise from the
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax

— different taxable entities,

liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods or the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of food and beverages and tobacco
products
Revenue from sale of food and beverages
and tobacco products is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the
products.

Prepayments from customers in respect of the
membership schemes operated by the Group
which are considered to be unearned at the
reporting date are shown as contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Revenue from club operations
Revenue from club operations (including
entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event rental
income) is recognised when the services have
been provided to the customers.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised when:

—  the promotion events have been held; or

—  the services have been rendered, and it
is probable that sponsorship income will
be granted.

Property management services income
Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised over the
period of services provided to the property
occupants/owners.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person's
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executives for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 3

ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a
non-current asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered impaired, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in profit or loss. These non-
current assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, except for goodwill which is tested
on an annual basis. When a decline of the assets’
recoverable amounts below the carrying amounts
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. It
is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group's assets are not readily available.
In determining value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of
sales volume and amount of operating costs.

2 5T F B & Ah 5t
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In measuring ECLs for trade and other receivables,
the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

132

Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets, and provision of property management
services.

Revenue represents the amount received or
receivable from the sale of food and beverages
and tobacco products, revenue from other club
operations (including entrance fees, cloakroom
fees and event rental income), sponsorship income
and income arising from provision of property
management services.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed in note 4(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by service lines and geographical

S 5T H B & A 5 (&)

(b)

B 5K H R KA R E

Rt 885 K H &K IE 2 B4
EEEBER AKEEZEEEALS
RARB DA ER/H S IE KA X
FEMN BERAEEMHER  EW
BRERKLEBRER - BHIE
EERSEXBREGREERER
BRAZE -

W =
AREBZETBEKBSMEBLE
EALBIEMPELERIREDES
B AR o

WaEHERM MR MAREEE
B U IR IE TR IR
@ (BREALE KEBEARED
HEWA) - BEVBEWANULRERD
XEERBEA -

BERAKRBEIREXB2E-—FFHB
A B 3E4(b) A 3 5% -

(i) %=
BIRBERZEP B E & o
MRBEEPAKZWA DTN

location of customers is as follows: ™
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
$'000 $/000
TERT FHET
Revenue from contracts with &HBHBHREEAE15
customers within the scope SREEARANREEFS
of HKFRS 15 EHRZWA
Revenue from club and SRANERELS
restaurant operations — &8
— Hong Kong 14,188 51,970
Revenue from property MEEEAY
management contracts —
— Mainland China 288,719 288,002
302,907 339,972
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
The Group’s customer base is diversified
and includes only one customer (2020: Nil)
with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group's revenue. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, revenue from property
management contracts derived from this
customer, including revenue from entities
which are known to the Group to be under
common control with this customer, amounted
to approximately $38 million.

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date
For property management services, the
Group recognises revenue as the services are
provided that correspond directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS
15 to its revenue from property management
contracts for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's
existing contracts as these contracts do not
have a fixed term.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business line and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the most
senior executives of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has identified two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

Segment Business

Lifestyle entertainment  Sales of food and
— Hong Kong beverages and
tobacco products
from operation of
clubbing business and
restaurant and bar
outlets

Property management  Provision of property
— Mainland China management services

4

iy %5
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(b)
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FHRS R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)
(i)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executives
monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception
of deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade and other payables and lease
liabilities attributable to the sales activities
of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment
(loss)/profit is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”, where “interest” is
regarded as including investment income
and “depreciation and amortisation” are
regarded as including impairment losses
on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is
provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income from cash balances
and interest expense from borrowings managed
directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the most senior
executives of the Group for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 is set out below.

(b) 7 EBI;|E ()
(i) nEH¥E BERERMHA

REE-_E-_—FR-_ZT-F
FZAZ+—BHILFEZER
PEEDBREAFHEAER
BEETHABREEEAEE
ASRESIBZEREFAR T °

Lifestyle entertainment Property management

— Hong Kong — Mainland China Total
EERE — BB MEEE — FERH it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
- —_FT-TF ZB--F _T_TF ZB--F _—T_THF
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THER FHET TExT FET FTExT FET
Revenue from external ROBESFHFIME
customers and reportable WERTHES
segment revenue W2 14,188 51970 288,719 288,002 302,907 339972
Reportable segment (loss)/ GE: ks
profit (adjusted EBITDA) (E|)
RA (R
EBITDA) (12,117) (9,221) 59,642 49,986 47,525 40,765
Interest income from bank $RITE R B A
deposits 1 4 4,925 6,616 4,926 6,620
Interest expenses FlEXH (392) (595) (23) @ (415) (604)
Depreciation and amortisation 47 B [ # 84 (12,911) (15,200) (8,760) (8,296) (21,671) (23,496)
Impairment losses on goodwill HEERERS (7,261) — = — (7,261) —
Impairment losses on property, Y% * W5 k& &R
plant and equipment BEE (11,486) (1,823) - — (11,486) (1,823)
Reportable segment assets THREDBEE 18,698 31,805 420,331 395,616 439,029 427,421
Additions to non-current segment 4 (X3 B 3£ 7 ) 9
assets during the year (note) WEE M) 23,025 35,821 871 647 23,896 36,468
Reportable segment liabilities w354 5 & & 27,928 28,067 167,080 136,577 195,008 164,644

Note: Additions to non-current segment assets consist
of additions to property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill.

Wit AREFRRDDOBEERED
BEVE BERRHE BEE
EREE-
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERoHME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DWW/ E(HE)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) H#HEDEWE - & EE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B HEREEZHE
2021 2020
—B-—F —TFTF
$'000 $'000
FHET FET
Revenue U =
Reportable segment revenue and  AI¥RE D H iz KRG
consolidated revenue (note 4(a)) Uz (B it4(a) 302,907 339,972
Profit or loss BRI EE
Reportable segment profit derived REAXNEEINIBEFEZ
from the Group's external AR & 9 & A
customers 47,525 40,765
Other revenue H b UG 2= 19,034 11,088
Other net (loss)/income Hith (F548) W A F 58 (5,996) 12,616
Depreciation and amortisation T & N Y (22,620) (24,612)
Finance costs Bh & Bk AX (2,386) (2,956)
Impairment losses on goodwill R A E 8 (7,261) —
Impairment losses on property, plant %1 3 « B 5 & &% # B (&
and equipment &5 18 (11,486) (1,823)
Unallocated head office and AOBEILRDERK
corporate expenses (9,752) (5,912)
Consolidated profit before taxation [ & Bl 45 & & F 7,058 29,166
Assets 5E
Reportable segment assets A SREDEEE 439,029 427,421
Deferred tax assets EER IR E E 3,020 2,097
Current tax recoverable AT Ui 0] B HA % 18 3,553 —
Unallocated head office and AR EIRTEESE
corporate assets 1,645 3,676
Consolidated total assets GEEERSE 447,247 433,194
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AmEDBEE 195,008 164,644
Current tax payable BN EA#Y 18 7,013 8,239
Deferred tax liabilities RER T BE 15,153 16,816
Unallocated head office and oA RLE¥EE
corporate liabilities 94,382 115,121
Consolidated total liabilities REBaEEE 311,556 304,820
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers and (ii)
the Group's property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the

(b)

DE R E ()

(iii) 13 E
TRAE A ANE BRI
EPATEUS W& R A EEY
¥ WMELEZH EREE-
PERIENFIBERIERN B 3
(FEERBEEDMEMR
ZER o BRP R & 12 FT
RERBREY X EMT
Elo otz BMERZHEM
T ORTERRBEE CHIEMN
EMREEZERME - L&

physical location of the asset, in the case of FREERBENS  LRME
property, plant and equipment, the location of DR R o
the operation to which they are allocated, in
the case of intangible assets and goodwill.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
’HNEEF RSk &R BEERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-FTF ZEB-—F ZT-FTF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THERT TAET THER FAT
Hong Kong ER(FTEH)
(place of domicile) 14,188 51,970 11,698 21,280
Mainland China R A b 288,719 288,002 108,045 107,237
302,907 339,972 119,743 128,517
5 OTHER REVENUE 5 HMlz
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FHF
$'000 $'000
TERT FET
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 4,946 6,694
Government grants (note) BRI 78 BY (47 7t) 8,816 3,240
COVID-19-related rent concessions BEHEmAERESER
received 4,382 —
Others HAth 890 1,154
19,034 11,088

Note: The amount represents government grants received from Hong

EE

Kong and various PRC government authorities in connection with
the fiscal subsidies for providing financial support to enterprises

and paying wages to the employees.

Z BRI EE LT B S BRI R 08 BT
e FRRCERHEBEANREEE X
& B B B o
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REMBRERME
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT RR)
6 OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 6 Hi(EH) BWAFH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FHF
$'000 $'000
TER FAT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERZXHBER
equipment (129) (544)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — R B AR U &S — 5,000
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain FEN (KB W FaE (6,117) 7,483
Reversal of provision for reinstatement costs 1 [0] 18 U Ak 7 8 (& 250 677
(5,996) 12,616
7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRBAEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BR B AR B A B (GEA) 51 &8
(crediting):
2021 2020
ZEB-—F —T_TF
$'000 $'000
FHET FAET
(a) Finance costs (a) @& AR
Interest on loan from the controlling REZERBREERZH B
shareholder 1,938 2,243
Interest on lease liabilities HMEA/BZME 448 713
2,386 2,956
138 AUX International Holdings Limited / B 5% B BB 2 BB R A R
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B ASR R M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

=
"E

7

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7

BR B Al A ()

2021 2020
—EB=—-F —TFTF
$'000 $'000
FExT FET
(b) Staff costs (b) EI KA
Contributions to defined contribution FEHFURIRET B 3K
retirement plans 12,484 20,470
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENREMBAH 117,465 135,626
129,949 156,096
(c) Other operating expenses () Ht R&ERX
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 W R IR R E B B
(note 25(a)) (K1 a#25(a)) 4,312 2,751
Impairment losses on other receivables H b & U R I8 B (B 5 18 1,382 —
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 B % B
— audit services — BRR% 2,706 2,580
— non-audit services — FEEZRHG 26 26
Office expenses wIE 1,663 2,234
Entertainment expenses XBHEFE 1,203 2,805
Travelling expenses ZIRE 1,482 2,357
Legal and professional fees EENMBEEER 4,102 2,626
Security costs REE 1,381 2,313
Gardening costs Gl EES 4,071 3,148
Government surcharges XA Bt hn & 1,989 1,810
Bank charges and credit card RIOTFEEREARAR
commissions 930 1,498
Community event costs HEEHER 1,887 1,525
Other Hh 8,053 8,142
35,187 33,815
(d) Other items (d)y HE#BEAH
Depreciation charge (note 12) FTrEXHMHT12)
— owned property, plant and — BEME BEX
equipment B3 1,431 5,657
— right-of-use assets — FEREEE 13,741 11,665
15,172 17,322
Amortisation (note 13) B (R aE13) 7,448 7,290
Cost of inventories sold (note 16) BEETFERAKNMNE16) 4,064 12,594

Gain on termination of lease agreement

AEEmERILEMES 2

Y 25
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HAeBEHZXTPHWFAEH

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) HMEBBEXRTHAERIE:
profit or loss represents:
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTZTF
$'000 $'000
FHET FAET
Current tax BEHE — ERNEH
— Hong Kong Profits Tax
Over-provision in respect of prior years B 5B &E — (410)
Current tax BEABiE — FEDE
— PRC Corporate Income Tax g
Provision for the year BB 16,123 14,461
Current tax BMBBIE — FEKRE
— PRC withholding tax on dividend W AFEH
income
Provision for the year FEEE 3,266 —
Deferred tax IE i B E
Origination and reversal of temporary  E R EREES L EE
differences (3,710) 1,902
15,679 15,953

Pursuant to the current rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"),
subsidiaries of the Group are not subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions.

1 40 AUX International Holdings Limited / B % S BB Z BB R AR
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

8 INCOME TAX

Hong Kong dollars)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, as the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong either
sustain a loss for taxation purpose or do not
generate any assessable income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the
PRC's statutory income tax rate is 25% (2020: 25%).

Among the branches of Ningbo AUX Property
Management Services Co., Ltd (“Ningbo AUX") in
the PRC, the Chengdu Branch was entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% under the Enterprise
Income Tax Preference Policies for the Western
Development. The directors are of the view that it
is highly probable that the Chengdu Branch will be
entitled to the same preferential tax rate and 15% is
adopted in estimating the tax provision for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Dividends payable by subsidiaries of the Group in
the PRC are subject to a 5% (2020: 5%) withholding
tax.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
management reassessed the dividend policy of
the Company's subsidiaries and considered that
the retained profits of these subsidiaries might be
distributed in the foreseeable future. Consequently,
deferred tax liabilities of $3,447,000 (2020:
$4,251,000) for temporary differences relating to
undistributed profits of subsidiaries were recognised
as at 31 March 2021.

8

REBERERTFHAEH(F
(a) HEBBRPHNAEHRE: (&)

AR EEREENMNE QR R
HHEMERBEER ABELAMT
MERTBEA BERE-_T-_—FK
—EZTFE=ZA=+—-HILEFEL
ARGEMBRERARETENEH
TEH B -

BEFEHCERESH L REZE
FEREMMEANLS (ZE_FF:
25%) °

RERRRAMERBEAERLR (2
MEZHDNRPBREZS REH - K
WORBRBEABARBHNDEEA
GHESBRREEZAISHNER
MK - BFERR/KRBD ARRAEA
EREHEREESZR XL KM%
NEABE-—FT-_—FR-_FT_FF
A=+t -HLEFEZHERE -

REBRAPENNE QR AERER
h%&w%—;_yis%%%ﬁ
B

HE-_Z-_—FR-_TZ-_ZTF=f=
+-BLFEE EEEBEHIGEA
AEIMBRARNEERE  TRA
ZEWB AR AIAEER B R RY
RRBaF - At WBRF RS
K St FI| 2 B = 583,447,000 70 (=
7_$¢42mww%w#_7_
—F=ZA=Z+—BFUER
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SEMBBRRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 &ZE8BEHZTTPHNRER (&)

142

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BERAHETENHERIRES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: AR
2021 2020
—E-_—fF —E-FTF
$'000 $'000
TERT FHET
Profit before taxation B 5 AT S A 7,058 29,166
Notional tax on profit before taxation, & i 5l )& ) 49 % & 75 18
calculated at the rates applicable to (R RDEE R R M &
profits in the jurisdictions concerned  EAR Kt H) 6,223 9,223
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A1 F S O 7 75 =2 & 4,366 1,797
Tax effect of non-taxable income FRBMBANT BB (1,147) (2,194)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary 7 52 & b 2= 58 09 B 7%
differences A 1,428 (374)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERKBAHIBEIED
recognised %Ri‘ki/ = 4,424 4,651
Tax effect of profits subject to R EEEREZ %A
preferential tax rate in the PRC E’J%Rfkg/ Z (1,754) (991
Tax effect of withholding tax on TGRS P RN E
undistributed profits of PRC NER DR 5 ) 8B
subsidiaries A (1,127) 4,251
PRC withholding tax on dividend H B AR B A TR A0
income 3,266 —
Over-provision in prior years MAFEBERE — (410)
Actual tax expense BERHERX 15,679 15,953
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part

9 EEHMN

ZREBRFHEDIFEIBIMIERDF (KB
ERFHER) B F BB EE B

2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about WA
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2021
—E--F
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’  allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
7é EER BARGTE
EEsHe B Mg AL it % @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THER TR THER THER THER
Chairman and executive @TERHUTEES
director
Zheng Jiang (appointed as  EI(EZZT_FF
the chairman with effect tAZtmAR
from 24 July 2020) BZERER) 1,998 - - - 1,998
Non-executive director  FHTEES
Zhang Jingguo (resigned ~ RFE(A-ZT-FF
as the chairman and re- Tt A+ mAREE
designated as a non- EEEBBLEE
executive director with ﬁ;?iﬂﬁi%
effect from 24 July 2020; HER_Z_2F
resigned with effect from TA=THE
30 October 2020) BHT) — - - - -
Executive directors BTES
Chan Hon Ki £ H - 1,777 - 18 1,795
Shen Guoying HEIES = = = = =
Liang Songluan (appointed 2 & % A&
with effect from (BZZZZ%1A
30 October 2020) “tHREZT) = = = = =
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Poon Chiu Kwok & IR B 250 - - - 250
Bau Siu Fung g 250 = = = 250
Lou Aidong EER 250 = = = 250
Total HeES 2,748 1,777 = 18 4,543
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9 EEHNE)

2020
—Z°%H
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e EMR RINEE
EExHe & REREE 3% Bt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTET FTET TET AT TAT
Chairman and executive IRRHUTES
director
Zhang Jingguo R E - - - - -
Executive directors BiTES
Zheng Jiang T 1,998 — — — 1,998
Chan Hon Ki £ H — 1,625 — 18 1,643
Shen Guoying HEIES — — — — —
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Poon Chiu Kwok E R E 250 — — — 250
Bau Siu Fung L 250 — — — 250
Lou Aidong EER 250 - - - 250
Total @Er 2,748 1,625 — 18 4,391
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

10

11

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
of them (2020: two) was a director whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments

REHMAL

HEAESHFMATFRAEALT(CE-F
FMAB)BEE HFEMWAN TR H
E B =—R(CEEF:ZZHALH

in respect of other three (2020: three) individuals are as FemEmT
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-THF
$'000 $'000
FHExT FET
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMME 2,467 4,882
Discretionary bonuses 15 TE AT — —
Retirement scheme contributions RARET & 30 89 73
2,556 4,955

The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with

SR CEZEE ZR)EaHMALH

the highest emoluments are within the following bands: FMEATSHER :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FHF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A&
$Nil to $1,000,000 =% T 21,000,000 7T 3 —
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t £1,500,0007%8 7T — 1
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2£2,000,0007% JT — 1
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7T & 2,500,000/ T — 1
(LOSS)/PROFIT PER SHARE 11 SREGE) EF
(a) Basic (loss)/profit per share (a) EREXR(ERE) HF

The calculation of basic (loss)/profit per share is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $8,621,000 (2020:
profit of $13,213,000) and the weighted average
number of 374,984,000 (2020: 374,984,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/profit per share
The diluted (loss)/profit per share is the same as
basic (loss)/profit per share as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in existence during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

(b)

BREAEE &M ERARF
T3 AR 25 AR R E (5 5 188,621,000
BL(ZEZZEF ARAIEBRE
%5 B% B FE 15 3% F113,213,0008 L)
AR FEREEITE®RIEFES
% #1374,984,000 (= & = & F :
374,984,000/% ) st E AT 15 ©

BRBEGEER)RR

BREE(ER) AANETFREAR
(E518), aFER - L IEREE=
T —FR-TETF=A=+—H
IEFEMTFTEET RS L BMR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

146

12 Y% BERSKHE

Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHR
Properties Furniture,
leased for  fixtures and Leasehold Motor
own use equipment improvements  vehicles Total
FERANEE HA #£BR
mE R HEMEZE AE @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TR THT TR FHT TEL
Cost: B
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-TFWA—A 25,706 18,959 35,997 90 80,752
Additions RE 21,596 1,797 433 70 23,896
Disposals HE (2,660) (421) = (3) (3,084)
Exchange adjustments ERRE 61 416 22 7 506
At 31 March 2021 R-ZF-—§=ZA=+—H 44,703 20,751 36,452 164 102,070
Accumulated depreciation and A HERBERFA:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2020 RZZZZFMWA—H 12,361 14,835 35,689 43 62,928
Charge for the year FARX 13,741 1,276 129 26 15,172
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) REB B ZF120b) 9,903 1,225 358 = 11,486
Written back on disposals & B R (2,660) (293) - () (2,955)
Exchange adjustments EHAE 15 161 22 4 202
At 31 March 2021 RZZ=-—-%=A=1+-H 33,360 17,204 36,198 Il 86,833
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 March 2021 WZZE=Z—-%=/A=1+—-H 11,343 3,547 254 93 15,237
Cost: B
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEWA—A 1,144 17,532 35,510 2,106 56,292
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B e B A A) 7,339 — — — 7,339
Additions wNE 18,565 1999 1,278 30 21,872
Disposals & (738) (263) (773) (2,042) (3,816)
Lease modification HEEB:] (585) — — — (585)
Exchange adjustments AR (19) (309) (18) @) (350)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZE=R=1+—H 25,706 18,959 35,997 90 80,752
Accumulated depreciation and RANERBERE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NEMA—H — 12,706 32,598 931 46,235
Charge for the year ERHEY 11,665 2,078 3,300 279 17,322
Impairment losses (note 12(b)) REB B Z120) 944 297 582 — 1,823
Written back on disposals i E R HOR (246) (167) (773) (1,165) (2,351)
Exchange adjustments EHAE (2) (79) (18) () (101)
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZFE=A=1+—H 12,361 14,835 35,689 43 62,928
Net book value: BEEE:
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZTF=A=1+—-H 13,345 4,124 308 47 17,824
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment losses

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
the operation of clubbing business and restaurant
and bar outlets continued to be loss-making. The
segment loss (i.e. adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation) of the clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets for the year
amounted to $12,117,000 (2020: $9,221,000) and the
Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the
relevant property, plant and equipment. As a result,
impairment losses of $11,486,000 (2020: $1,823,000)
were recognised as “impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to reduce the carrying
amount of these property, plant and equipment
to their recoverable amount of $11,313,000 (2020:
$12,699,000). The estimates of recoverable amount
were based on the value-in-use model, in which the
cash flows were discounted using discount rate of
13% (2020: 11% to 13%). The discount rate used was
pre-tax and reflected specific risks relating to the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets.

12 V¥ BEKREE)

(b)

REEIE
BEZZ-—FR-F-FF=A=
T—HIEFE  gMEBURERR
EEFmHEBSESRGEE -8
FrEBRERELEEMNTD HFER
EE(CHABRKRIAE  MHE- - TEK
AT AR £$12,117,0008 L (=ZF
—EFF 92210008 L) MAEER
EEHEEEYE - BRERRERTTIR
El& & o AL - B{EE 11,486,000
BT (ZZE-Z 4 11,823,000 7L) 2
ﬁ’\,m SRR ANERABIME  BF
HEREBE] UWRIZEY
% MERSEHEREmMEZZTK
O] 4 %811,313,0008 L (ZE T F ¢
12,699,000/ 7T) © ATYN Bl & 5B Al 5
TRBEFEREERAGSE  EhW
BEREaR13% (ZE_ZEF : 11%2
13%) By #7358 L4738 - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁfiﬁ
AR RMEQESMER -
FEXBEMMMAEBNESERR -

Right-of-use assets () HAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use ERAEEERBBEESRMNAED
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: RESFESTT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
$'000 $'000
THET FET
Properties leased for own use, EBERNHEEMERITE
carried at depreciated cost AT BR 11,343 13,345
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12

(CONTINUED)

(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The analysis of expense/(income) items in relation to

WX BMERREE)

() EREEEMA)
ERETHEANEEEFRNEL,

leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: (WA)BEEDTWT :
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTZTF
$'000 $'000
THER FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  F FAEEELIEBFEEER

assets by class of underlying asset: WITEER:

Properties leased for own use EERAMEEDE 13,741 11,665
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(2)) MEBEZF B (Hi7(3) 448 713
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 HiFH & &k A fb 82~ HH HA R

and other leases with remaining —ETF=A=+—H

lease term ending on or before S ZAEmNEE

31 March 2020 623 5,728

COVID-19-related rent concessions
received (note 5)

B = (Hit5)

EEHEMmAREES

(4,382) —

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were $21,596,000 (2020: $18,565,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under renewed agreements for a club and
a bar and restaurant outlet entered into during the
year.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 18(c) and 21, respectively.

As disclosed in note 2(c), the Group has early
adopted the Amendment to HKFRS 16, Leases,
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, and applies the
practical expedient introduced by the Amendment
to all eligible rent concessions received by the Group
during the year.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its premises for club, bars and restaurants and
office premises through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3
years.

148
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FN{E BREE EE 21,596,000/ 7T
—EF ~F 18,565,000/ JT) ° & K
HEEFNEETSRMRBERERE
EFMEOTEMNNERNMLESAE

e
REEEANRSRHARMED N
HERBENBIH Do 5 &R E
18(c) k221 »

W E2MKE  AEBERF R
MEBM B REERF16REE (B
AR B A2 & BR
FAHAEHECWMERERTER
RRERZETSIANTITERES.
A o

EE A HE Y *
AEBEEEBHENRESERS
TUMESNRERN EREEGM B
EBRERNSHARRAE - IhE
HE-RONTBEME=F -
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Properties leased for own use (Continued)

One of the leases includes an option to renew the
lease for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by the
Group to provide operational flexibility. The Group
assesses at lease commencement date whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease
payments during the extension periods are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities. The
potential exposure to these future lease payments is
summarised below:

12 Y% BERREE)

(c)

ERREE(HA)
EERA B EEY ¥ (A
HP-—RHHERR—REER T
MAANBERERBEE -BREM -
RATHBERT AKEFREHE
IREFRNFAIHAEETED
BTHEEE NEMEBEREE-
AEERNERAFHERT AR
AREITEEEEEE - HAKHE
REREWRABETEHEMREE
- RIEE B AR R R E N
PTHAMERBEZAR - ZFARKHE
ENFBERBRB AT

Lease liabilities

Potential future lease
payments under
extension options

not included in lease

recognised (discounted) liabilities (undiscounted)

FEAHEEEW
BRINHEHEERE EREZEETEBERR

(BESE) HEMRCREER)
2021 2020 2021 2020
B —T-TF ZEBE--F —T_TF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THER FET FTER FET

Premises for club — Hong Kong & P75 #f

— &H 21,647 15,194 24,000 16,800

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
received rent concessions for its premises for club
and restaurant and bar outlets in the form of a
discount on fixed payments during the period
of severe social distancing and travel restriction

measures introduced to contain the spread of
COVID-19.

REBEE-_ZE-_—F=ZA=1+HILHF
B EAMFFEMAZBEEMD
BRERHY B B A 32 PR B K o 2 IR I 4
HREE AEEFAERHHES
Fr - Z2BELMABEMATHECERE
BN ERESER -
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AT ER)
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BEEE
Property
management
contracts and
Customer related customer
relationships relationships Total
MEEBEHOR
BEERRE HEEEBE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
FHET FHET FHET
Cost: ﬁi?,zli :
At 1 April 2019 AT —HAEMA—H 1174 75,868 77,042
Exchange adjustments b 5, 58 B — (4,911) (4,911)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZTHF=HA=+—H 1174 70,957 72,131
At 1 April 2020 R-ZTE-_ZTFMA—H 1,174 70,957 72,131
Exchange adjustments M 5, 3 B — 6,019 6,019
At 31 March 2021 RZEBE-_—F=ZA=+—H 1,174 76,976 78,150
Accumulated BN £
amortisation:
At 1 April 2019 RZTE—-NAFMNA—H 1174 14,542 15,716
Charge for the year FARX — 7,290 7,290
Exchange adjustments AR — (1,136) (1,136)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_EF=—A=1+—H 1,174 20,696 21,870
At 1 April 2020 RZE_ZFTFMA—H 1,174 20,696 21,870
Charge for the year FRMRAXZ — 7,448 7,448
Exchange adjustments PE X 3 % — 2,006 2,006
At 31 March 2021 R-ZEZ—F=A=+—H 1174 30,150 31,324
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE_—F=A=+—H — 46,826 46,826
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE_ZTH=RA=+—H — 50,261 50,261
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AFEEHIEERAAAGEERRNITE
"depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated N#IHIA -

statement of profit or loss.
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

14 GOODWILL 14 BHE
$'000
FTET
Cost: B :
At 1 April 2019 RZE—NFMNA—H 56,850
Additions NE 7,261
Exchange adjustments E & 38 & (3,679)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZF=RA=+—HK
—E-FTFWMHA—H 60,432
Exchange adjustments M 5 3 B 4,509
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—F=A=+—H 64,941
Accumulated impairment losses: ZitBEEE:
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 1‘5’\\:% himﬂ A
= ¢ A= "1— H &
Impairment loss ﬂﬁJEETE 7,261
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—F=A=+—H 7,261
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 March 2021 R_ZE_—%=A=+—H 57,680
At 31 March 2020 R-ZBE-_ZTF=A=+—H 60,432

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill

The Group's goodwill arose from the acquisition of Ningbo
AUX in May 2017 and Mini Club Hong Kong Limited ("Mini
Club™) in April 2019.

The goodwill is attributable to (1) the workforce of
Ningbo AUX and the potential growth of the property
management industry in the PRC; and (2) the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth and the assembled
workforce of Mini Club.

BEHENREELEANRENR

AEEBEBLDIEAR-_ZT—tFRAK
BERRE R T —NFEMNAKEMin
Club Hong Kong Limited ([Mini Club]) °

FERAMNERBEHNTEERKNU LS
BIMEEBTENBLE R UKEQ)TEH
HERENTZ - WA K EMini Club
B ATF -
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14
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GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified as
follows:

& (&)
BEHENRSEEBUNRENR A

BAESEEZAEEM#NSREELE
fIEAT

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
$'000 $'000
THERT FET
Property management business VEERET 57,680 53,171
Operation of restaurant and bar outlets & & FE KBIEPAH — 7,261
57,680 60,432
Property management business VEN-EET

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
estimated weighted average growth rates of 3% (2020:
3%) which is not higher than the forecasts included in
industry reports. The growth rate used does not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted
using discount rates of 21% (2020: 21%). The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the operation
of property management business continued to be
profit-making and thus no impairment indicator for the
respective goodwill has been identified.

Operation of restaurant and bar outlets

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using estimated
weighted average growth rates of 2% (2020: 2%) which is not
higher than the forecasts included in industry reports. The
growth rate used does not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates.
The cash flows are discounted using discount rates of 13%
(2020: 13%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR

ReEABEMMAREAERNEREE
FHESH - R ERBAREEEEHEZ
TEMPBREZEARERE - BBR
FHIR TR EJIE B G EH 0 EF IS
RR3I% (ZZE_TF :3%)HEE - HFaR
TERBEPORA - FAAERXRLERB
ReELENRKEMERBNRAFIIE
EX-BEREANREN% (T _F
Fr21%) R - AAFRRSHA - AR
RIS B2 ERSERER

HE_ZT-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE P
XEREBLELRERSAEN  HAA
AEEYELRRE -

EERGEFH¥EKE
REELBMNNAIKRESEENFEREER
FFESH A ERARBREREMEL
hEMUBEE MR RE - B8R
FHNRESRENFERGBETMEESER
K% (ZB_TF 2%)HE - ERAENT
EWEFHIEA - FTAEREWEBRIR
SEAENLEMEEBHRAFHER
Ko W MEUFTMEIZ% (ZE_FF :
13%) 138 - FTAFIRE AT A - I REAE
Mo ac BT TR -
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15

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
(Continued)

Operation of restaurant and bar outlets (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the operation
of restaurant and bar outlets continued to be loss-
making which indicated the respective goodwill may not
be recoverable. The Group assessed the recoverable
amounts of the related CGU to be $1,098,000. As a result,
an impairment loss of $7,261,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated.

14

15

BE(H)
BEHENRSELEANEERNR (&)

BEREIEFIH¥*%% (&

HE_T-_—F=-A=1+—BLFE £
BIBEPmEBEELRER  BRAE
PR E A REEEEAED - AEEE
KBRS EEEMNA RO EFGER
1,098,000/ 7T » F it - A {E E5187,261,000
BTERAFEEGBRARATIARER

REBLAANKRE
TREFIHAEEEXE BEENAEER

BEAFEZHBRBZHE - KRHIIH
Sho B BB ZER R EBR -

Proportion of ownership interest

FAEERLA
Place of Particulars of Group's Held Held
incorporation/ issued and  effective by the by a
Name of company establishment  paid up capital interest  Company subsidiary  Principal activity
HEMRL/ BEOTR A&KEZ PN
O Rt BHRERAHE EBEREZ AQAEE BHE EEH
New Pride Corporate Limited*  BVI 101 shares 100% 100% —  Investment holding
EERAHS 101 100% 100% — REER
Cheerful Raise Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative
service to group companies
EABRAR B 1% 100% — 100% WEBERFR/THEERS
Club Kingdom The Central Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Holding of trademarks
Group Limited
BE 18 100% — 100% HEBR
Success Deal Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Operation of clubbing
business
BE 18 100% — 100% HEBHER
Starry Chance Limited* Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
EE2ER A BB 1 100% — 100% BEEK
Ningbo AUX™ The PRC 5,000,000 shares 100% — 100%  Provision of property
management services
ERER # 5,000,000 100% — 100% REDEEBRH
Po Tai Holdings Limited* Hong Kong 1 share 100% — 100%  Investment holding
ERERBERAR" Bk 18R 100% - 100% RERR
Legend Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Operation of restaurant and
bar outlets
R 10,0008 100% - 100% HBEEEREEMD
* Ningbo AUX is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC. The * ERRETH—ERPEZIIEBEERE -

company name in English is a direct translation of the registered

Chinese name for the purpose of identification.

# KPMG are not the statutory auditors of these companies.

PXABREHEAEMEXEMZ B XS F
EHHR -

" EFREMMEBEAALIEZERRANEER
Z0ED -
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AT RR)
16 INVENTORIES 16 =FE&
2021 2020
—E-—% BT
$'000 $'000
FExT FHET
Food and beverages and other BY - hm R EHMEET -
operating items for club operations ERIBEEHNKEIRR
and restaurant and bar outlets 519 927
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as BRAAIVFAABZONTFESE SN
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: NS
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF
$'000 $'000
TE T FHT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 4,064 12,594
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESRHMEWRNRIE
2021 2020
—E-—f BT F
$'000 $'000
FExT FAET
Trade receivables, net of BSRWEIA  HMBREE
loss allowance (note) B (i) 68,777 67,819
Deposits, prepayments and Re - TBRRIE K& H M RE
other receivables & @ 20,887 24,513
89,664 92,332
Note: At 31 March 2021, trade and other receivables of the Group Wat: RZZEZ—F=A=+—R0 FXEE2E5
included amounts due from entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian R Lt 5 3R TR B 4 B M A1 B 2 IR AR R B
Jiang, the Company's controlling shareholder, of $3,193,000 (2020: BIAERHNERRHEFEALENE
$4,371,000) and entities over which Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang has 87 HRIE > DRI A3,193,0008 (T %
significant influence, of $5,147,000 (2020: $4,035,000). The amounts £ 14,371,000/ 7r) }24,371,0005%8 T (=T =
represent property management fees receivable arisen in the T4 1 4,035,000/87T) c A EARAEES
ordinary course of business. BIEPELEZEKMEERE -
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

177 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The amount of the Group's deposits, prepayments and
other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense after more than one year is $6,805,000 (2020:
$4,226,000), which mainly represent rental deposits for
club and restaurant of the Group (2020: rental deposits
for office premises and restaurant of the Group). All of
the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss

ES N EMEWKREGE)

REEFEHER —FREESERBAZ
mﬁﬁ~ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁwmﬁméﬁ
£6,805,000/8 JT (ZZ = F 4 : 4,226,000
BL) EXTEZEEARAEEeMEEE
CHEERS(CEZZEF AKERLE
MEREE HERS) FIEEMES
N H A e s IBS T8 B R — F A= 3k
HRAEREZ -

BRiR DA

HEREHR  STABZ HEMERRE
HE S FEW GBI 3 Z A B LA Rk %%
BEENERESTOT

allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —EFF

$'000 $'000

F#& T FHET

Within 1 month —f@AR 30,009 29,954
Over 1 month to 3 months BE—EAZ=[®A 8,832 8,821
Over 3 months to 6 months BE=EAZ EA 6,256 6,249
Over 6 months to 1 year B@ANEAE—F 8,801 11,422
Over 1 year —F LA E 14,879 11,373
68,777 67,819

AEEFEEBRRRESREES IEEEE’J
EERRZE—FFBHRME250)

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 25(a).
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HReRHRESZEYURHMBEER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER
(@) The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as (@ ReLReZFEYHTHOT:
follows:
2021 2020
—E=-—-F —T-THF
$'000 $'000
F#& T FHET
Deposits with banks and cash on hand R{TFEHR LK FER & 230,748 209,321
Restricted bank deposits (note (i) TRHIRITFER
(Bt ) (3,550) (2,586)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEReERERN
consolidated cash flow statement ReEkREFEY 227,198 206,735

Notes: b & -

(i) Restricted bank deposits represent the cash collected from (i) ZREIRITFERIBEREMEER £ £
property occupants/owners for the repair and maintenance KRHAE ERAEKRRTEFEZH#
fund maintained by Ningbo AUX. ERREES -

(i) Included in deposits with banks and cash in hand of the (i) RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H' &K
Group, $225,881,000 (2020: $203,176,000) are denominated SENRTERERFERSTE
in Renminbi at 31 March 2021. Renminbi is not a freely $£225,881,000% w(= & — & 4
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of 203,176,000 ) M AREE - A
mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed RETRIEaABNEY MES
by the Government of the PRC. HPBEAEELASPEARLIME

IR I S BEE PR ) o
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBHFEELEBEMNYEER
activities

The table below details changes in the Group's TERAMAEERETHMELEN

liabilities from financing activities, including both BEEE  EEREENEREEY -

cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from METHFELENABERRESRE
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows ERFARKREREFENEAEER
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the GARERERANIEEMETE

Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash FEANBEERENZEAE -

flows from financing activities.
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HReRHRESZEYURHMBEER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEZBFMELEENYHIKRA)

activities (Continued)

Loan from the
controlling
shareholder and
amount due to

the controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REEZERRR
ERREM
2 1% B R X8 HEAE st
$'000 $'000 $'000

TERT TERT TERT
(note 22) (note 21)
(Htit22) (B a£21)

At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZBFMA—H 111,600 22,129 133,729
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREH:
Repayment of loan from the controlling HBEZERBRREER

shareholder (31,248) — (31,248)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEReN RS S = (16,343) (16,343)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EREEREHFETSD = (448) (448)
Total changes from financing cash flows BMERSRELHLT (31,248) (16,791) (48,039)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 7,349 44 7,393
Other changes: Hit1# 5
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) FE (B 7)) 1,938 448 2,386
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into & R E 5] 3 %1 & 11 &)

renewed leases during the year HERE — 21,596 21,596
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BB EMABEEE

BE = (4,382) (4,382)

Total other changes Hiv B ghpm 1,938 17,662 19,600
At 31 March 2021 R-ZB--H=ZH=+-—H 89,639 23,044 112,683
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HReRHRESZEYURHMBEER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEZBFMELEENYHIKRA)

activities (Continued)

Loan from the
controlling
shareholder and
amount due to

158

the controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REFRRRE
ERRER
FERRRKIE HE&E T
$'000 $'000 $'000
FHT FHIT FHET
(note 22) (note 21)
(Ht:t22) (Kr&21)
At 1 April 2019 R-B-NEMA—H 16912 1,762 118,674
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREH:
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREN A — (5,022) (5,022)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREEREHFETD — (713) (713)
Total changes from financing cash flows MEREGRELHBE — (5,735) (5,735)
Exchange adjustments ELRAE (7,555) (20) (7,575)
Other changes: Hip# 5
Interest expenses (note /(a)) B (M 52 7E) 2,243 713 2,956
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into  FWEFT M HAE K ER M
new leases and renewal of leases during EmMMHEERR
the year — 19,157 19,157
Increase in lease liabilities from acquisition AW EmENNEESRE — 7,348 7,348
Decrease in lease liabilities from lease RHEEETMALHESE
modification =0 — (585) (585)
Decrease in lease liabilities from termination FEEA K& IETE DK
of lease agreement HEAE — (511) (511
Total other changes HipEEHaem 2,243 26,122 28,365
At 31 March 2020 RZE-ZF=A=+—H 111,600 22,129 133,729
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AN RERMT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HBeNBRESZEYUREBEMBEAER

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEBRSRHHAEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for REEFARSRERTHNSER
leases comprise the following: BATEIE:
2021 2020
—E-—fF TE-TH
$'000 $'000
FTHExT FET
Within operating cash flows EREEIRE RN (623) (9,652)
Within financing cash flows EREREARN (16,791) (5,735)
(17,414) (15,387)
These amounts relate to the following: ZETHETIZIEGE:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZT-TF
$'000 $'000
FHExT BT
Lease rentals paid BEfHEE 17,414 15,387
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ESRHEMENRKIE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTHF
$'000 $'000
THEx FET
Trade creditors 25N RE 28,331 22,335
Deposits received from property REMEEE EPUE
owners/occupants e 22,585 19,104
Receipts on behalf of utilities companies K&K R B EE Q7 UK 17,161 15,930
Amounts due to related parties JFE 1t B B 5 R 08 3,041 2,137
Other payables and accrued charges Hofth & 50 IR K fE 5T B A 45,914 41,181
117,032 100,687
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

19

20

160

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19
(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

The amounts due to related parties represent balances
due to entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Jian Jiang, the
Company's controlling shareholder, which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade creditors (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B 5 & Hth B S =R (4F)
BHMEES KA MBS REER —FR
RBRIEBERMEE -

B 1<) 1A B 05 308 (KL 9 B MO 23 3] 4 R AR

RERTRERFNER &R SER
A R2ERAR-—FRNEE-

HERSHR  FTABS R AMERNKIE
NESENFIBREZAHNERR SN
T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
$'000 $'000
THET FET
Within 3 months =EAR 13,957 12,469
Over 3 months to 6 months BE=EAZEEA 10,546 6,269
Over 6 months to 1 year B@ANEAZE—F 2,480 2,307
Over 1 year —F LA F 1,348 1,290
28,331 22,335

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20 EHEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFTF
$'000 $'000
THExT TFHET
Billing in advance of performance T8 U B 49 50 IR 59,675 45,349

The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended
31 March 2021 that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at 1 April 2020 was $45,349,000 (2020:
$53,058,000).

AUX International Holdings Limited / B3¢ HiEI R 2 IR R A =)

@E_z:—i—ﬂ—+ BILFE -
TEA— HJAA%ELmﬁm
BER HSZ 5B 58 A45,349,00008 T (—E =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)
21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HEAE
At 31 March 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as RZEZ—F=-fA=+—H AEENHE
follows: EBENT:
2021 2020
—B_—fF —E_ETF
$'000 $'000
TR FHET
LA, $ 21,054
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHE-_FR 8,387 1,075
After 2 years but within 5 years —FREAFAN 372 —
. $ U 1075
23,044 22,129
22 LOAN FROM THE CONTROLLING 22 REEZERBRRERREMEZER
SHAREHOLDER AND AMOUNT DUE TO THE RMIE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at 2% per annum ZERBEERER  REMR2%T 2K
and repayable in August 2022. RZEBEZZFNARNEE -
The amount due to the controlling shareholder, JE A 128 A% IR SR R IE (BE R A B B R R
representing the interest payable, is unsecured, non- BB R—FRNEE -
interest bearing and repayable within one year.
23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 #HREHBMRRIRPHMAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HFAEVBMRRKFHENEATIARE

financial position represents:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-ZF
$'000 $'000
TET F#E T

Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax for the & A #R Bl 1 2 B 15 B 18 1
year 16,123 14,461
Provisional PRC Corporate Income Tax paid ERTEMTEREMREH (9,706) (7,244)
6,417 7,217

Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax provision BEFERBMETEG
relating to prior years 596 1,022
Current tax payable JEAT B HA TR 1R 7,013 8,239

Current tax recoverable AJ e (51 B B B K

— PRC withholding tax — PEEMH (3,553) —

Annual Report 2021 £ 3R

161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 #HEAHMBMRAERPHFFEHR(EF)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised: (b) EHRELHREEEZ (BE):
(i)  Movement of each component of deferred (i) EEHEBEERE (EE)SHARX
tax liabilities/(assets) 285 By % B
The components of deferred tax liabilities/ RERa B AR RN R A IR
(assets) recognised in the consolidated EFREAE (BE) AR
statement of financial position and the MRFANHEFHNT

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
(in excess of)/less

than the related Impairment Amortisation Undistributed
depreciation losses on trade Accrued  of intangible profits of
allowances receivables expenses assets  subsidiaries Total
(BE),/HPREB EZEKFHEH WEAR
FERBOHFE HERR EHER EVEERE  K2KEA Ehy
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FERT FET FET FET TER FET
Deferred tax arising from: EEBERE:
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NE
A—H (6) (1,604) (84) 15,331 - 13,637
Charged/(credited) to profit ~ REBHFHE,/
or loss (5t A) 6 (488) (45) (1,822) 4,251 1902
Exchange adjustments ERFEE — 17 7 (944) — (820)
At 31 March 2020 and K=-Z=%%=H
1 April 2020 =+-BR
i et 32
mA—B — (1975) (122) 12,565 4,251 14,119
Credited to profit or loss RERPHA — (721) - (1,862) (1,127) (3,710)
Exchange adjustments ERAR — (191) (1) 1,003 323 1124
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—F
ZA=t-8 — (2,887) (133) 11,706 3,447 12,133
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SR ERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) (continued)

(c)

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

wh

(b)

EMBMRRRPNAEHR(HE)

(#)

(i) A& BB R

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FTF
$'000 $'000
THET FAT
Net deferred tax assets REEE BRI EZR
recognised in the consolidated & FR#YIE & 7% 18
statement of financial position BEFE (3,020) (2,097)
Net deferred tax liabilities REEE BRI EZR
recognised in the consolidated & FR#YIE & 7% 18
statement of financial position BEFR 15,153 16,816
12,133 14,719
Deferred tax assets not recognised () KRERELEHEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in 1B W 5E2(q) FT 8 1) & &5 K

note 2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and
temporary differences arising from property, plant
and equipment amounting to $144,924,000 (2020:
$118,386,000) and $28,118,000 (2020: $29,964,000)
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which such losses and temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in the
relevant entities. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are (i) losses of $143,139,000 (2020: $118,386,000)
from Hong Kong operations that can be carried
forward indefinitely, and (i) losses of $1,785,000
(2020: $Nil) from the PRC operations that will expire
in five years from the year in which they arose.

AEBUTEREAHREESEERY
% B K 7% {%EEE’J%H%%?E
S B1144,924,0008 T (ZE =&
118,386,000 JT) 128,118, ooo,% JT
ZE T F 1 29964,000 7T) HE R
BEHEEE REAAHEBERT
AOREERERMEMBEZZBX
&EH%%%ﬂ%bﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂuoﬂiﬁﬁﬁ

HIEEEES  ()F18143,139,0007%
n(_7_7¢ 118,386,000 7T)
TR EBER  n[ERH4 L 53

(i1) JEET§1 785 000B L (ZE=FF:
Zm) RRFEER  BREEE
iiﬁiﬂ%“l‘ﬂi?ﬁﬂ%ﬁ
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTTERR)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24 BEXRfEE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEZEARBLEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBEGEERASEAKS D H
closing balances of each component of the Group's NMEMREROERENGEEER
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated BEEK FYNEFRPBEERRFE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the PliEZAKT Y Z B FITHI W
changes in the Company'’s individual components of Ik

equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

The Company AT
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
BRAE  ROEE RitBE #Et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FET THET FAET FET
Balance at 1 April 2019 R-E-hENA—H
i 4 BR 3,750 177,000 (76,793) 103,957

Change in equity for the year BIZ-_Z_-ZF

ended 31 March 2020: =A=1+—HLEFE
ERgE:
Loss and total comprehensive FREELEZEK &
income for the year FOkG) — — (14,726) (14,726)

Balance at 31 March 2020 R-ZBE-Z£=H

and 1 April 2020 =t-HK
e 33
MA— B & e 3,750 177,000 (91,519) 89,231
Change in equity for the year BIZE-Z-—%
ended 31 March 2021: ZA=t+—-HLEEE
EREE:
Loss and total comprehensive FABE R ZMH
income for the year U %5 4258 — — (11,102) (11,102)

Balance at 31 March 2021 N-oB=-—F
=Z=A=+—HBH1
ek 3,750 177,000 (102,621) 78,129
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Hong Kong dollars)

24 BEXRf#E (A

Share capital (b) M
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
RGEE ©8 gt 4= okl
'000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
TR TERT TR TET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each &R EE0.017% 7T
FOR=B =R 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued EER BRITK
and fully paid: HRE:
At the beginning and the end R F I R F K
of the year 374,984 3,750 374,984 3,750
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TR EAE AR RWERT RS IR
dividends as declared from time to time and are e WEERARARRELUT
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the R—F|BETRR - HEARBFERE
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with EME FIBEERRKRMORFASZE -
regard to the Company’s residual assets.
Nature and purpose of reserves () RBENHEBERAEDN

(i) Share premium
The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of the business.

(i) Ri7EE

B 1048 (B 15 AR R B A 4 E B &
AT R B A0 WHR B P 15 3K
HHER - REFASHE AT
R AR R R i B BR A
DIRFARBEOBR - HEERE
EFENIKKEERR  ARQF
BRI —REBBRETE
MR ER -
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(CAE TR R)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

166

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the cash paid
for the acquisition of subsidiaries contributed
by the former controlling shareholder in

September 2010.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign

exchange differences arising from

translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set

out in note 2(t).

(iv) Statutory reserve

The Articles of Association of Ningbo AUX
require the appropriation of 10% of its profit
after tax each year, based on its statutory
audited financial statements, to the statutory

reserve until the balance reaches 50%

the registered capital of Ningbo AUX. The
statutory reserve may be capitalised as the

paid-in capital of Ningbo AUX.

Distributability of reserves
As at 31

(2020: $85,481,000).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:

$Nil).

AUX International Holdings Limited / R % SiEIB ZRARAR

March 2021, the aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were $74,379,000

24 BEXRNG#HE(E

(c)

(d)

(e)

RENHEERBN(H)

(i) BXEE
BAREREAERBERR =
E-ZTENARKEBEHBAR
I eRE -

(iii) [EZf#FE
EXRFHEEERBREBIER
BTSSR M E £ WP A HME =
B REKENE2A0MEZ
SRTRRHETT -

(iv) EEFE
BERRR T ESEIRARENX
BERBEATELE MR
2 L BRI AR 5 A A9 10% B A
EERE BEEEREDNER
B 5o Hi iE it B AN H950% © VA TE
FEAIENMERER R
B RA -

AR DR B
R-_ZE-_—F=F=+—H" 1
RORTARBER KRR B
& #£74,379,0008 T( =T = F F:
85,481,000 7T) °

B’ &
EETERkNEE-_ZT-—F=A
Z+—HZBRE(ZEZZEF: &) -
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(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

()

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group's strategy was to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and
ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligations. The ratio of the Group's total
liabilities over its total assets at 31 March 2021 was
70% (2020: 70%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

24 BEXRNG#HE(E

()

25

AEER-—REBBEFELEE

Bw  MEREENRER TXHAALSE

ExER
AEEEREANARERE/RE
AEBERBHBELERD  BBA
J& R KF E an S IR 75 TE B A I
NeaBKARGRE BHEASRXE
TREHRESEMBESFBEAGTRK
Mk e

AEEBEL T HERREELA
AR L HEFREE SATH
fe 5T T BB A0 B 8 MR SR L 9 5
GRBRAMOINTRRES 2
R 5 T - 3 L ER A R
Bl HREALE -

AEBEBLEHEBERRNERE
Ko REBMNEBABESBER
WRE—BFENME  LHERE
ERHNLEESHEEHRER - K
EEN-_E-_—-F=A=+—-HKHE
BEBUNBEELLREBION (ZF =
T 70%) ©

AN 5 AE ] B 22 199 7R 51
56,00t 4 A AT B IR ©

BHEEREEREMIAATE

Vi)

BEEZEFRRORARAEEEEZS
e B BT B% PR B B 75 R Bz B 3R USRI AE D

(a)

FERR

EERRESEFIRBITANER
MmalBMAEEHMBERORER - &
SEEERARIERANRESREK
HIE - EREEHERFERKLFE

BEEZEEENRR -
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(ABTTERR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
restricted bank balances and cash and bank balances
is limited as the counterparties are banks with sound
credit standing.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group, as
where there is credit exposure to the Group, it is
spread over a diversified portfolio of customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables in connection with operation of
clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets
is limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of property management services,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
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(a)

FERR A
HRRSHEFREERFEETR
R ERTT - AN B A SR HIR 1T 4 8
kB MRITERAAZHNEER
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AEBYERfENEEAEE®
s EREBRAER -
ESEWRME

AEBEZEERBRIEXEEFHE
IR E T8 MIEXBEPELEM
ETXIBRMAEE - ARNAEH
HENEERROBREZTENER
FHle BAEETEEREFE
ERE -

AEEEGH EEMAEPAME
BAEBNESBRBFEMELNE
ERBRER  TTHERHFHIIAEE
RREEEEERRNEBERE -

HEREDNEEERBERNES
FEYW R IRTN & 18 5IE BT b 08t
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B FFfh E B E B B P IAE B B
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EREELRESRIANTEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERKE)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEKE(E)
The following table provides information about the TREJNERAEERER ZEER
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade BRARESEKKRIE BREEE
receivables: BOER:
2021
—E-—F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RHBER BEREE BiERE
% $'000 $'000
% TERT THERT
Property management YEETE
Less than 1 year past due BE DR —F 0%-5% 56,514 2,635
1-2 years past due BE—EWF 24% 12,277 2,987
2-3 years past due BEIRE =5 38% 6,382 2,425
3-4 years past due BAI= EYF 54% 3,526 1,894
More than 4 years past due 0 B 8 38 7O 100% 3,278 3,278
Operation of clubbing business and 48 & & A7 2 7% -
restaurant and bar outlets BB REEFT i 81,977 13,219
Current (not past due) BN HA (oK 280 HY) 0% 19 —
81,996 13,219
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(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

Hong Kong dollars)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

170

Credit risk (Continued)

BHEEREEREMTIAQNTYE

(&

(@) FERRGE)

Trade receivables (Continued) BESENIE(E)
2020

T F

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHE B X BEREE EiEEE
% $'000 $'000

% T TR

Property management YEETE

Less than 1 year past due AL —F 0%—-4% 58,594 2152

1-2 years past due BE—E2WF 19% 9,390 1,750

2-3 years past due BMEWE =F 30% 4,608 1,403

3-4 years past due B =Z2NF 72% 1,874 1,347

More than 4 years past due wEE BN E 100% 1,425 1,425
75,891 8,077

Operation of clubbing business and A& & EFH « &

restaurant and bar outlets E R B FT T

Current (not past due) BIHA (oK 280 HY) 0% 5 —

75,896 8,077

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

25 HXERBEEREMIAATE

(&

(a)

EHERR(H)

B ZEYE (&)

FN - BKE SRR ERBER
BEHMT:

2021 2020

—E-—fF —E-FHF

$'000 $'000

FERT TR

At the beginning of the year NS 8,077 5,773

Impairment loss recognised (note 7(c) E MR BEEIE

(Wt 2 7)) 4,312 2,751

Exchange adjustments E 5 38 & 830 (447)

At the end of the year REXR 13,219 8,077
Liquidity risk (by RBELEMR

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’'s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions or
controlling shareholder to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

AEEAENEEEREERAL
ReEl BRESEHRNEHR
ENERERENERREFT R
HE fis £ 5K R 38 T8 T B IR K F B
AAEBRRESEHE - AKH
MBRASEHMERRDESFT R
DrERgER T RORE HENKE
T2 REBIIERBRNE A
HEERE ORREHMLEHRD
BE2HmEK -
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EREELRESRIANTEE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELEKE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRITAEBEeRmBENREH
maturities at the end of the reporting period of RKOBTENOINEER  WWIRE
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based EHARTRB R (BREEAHF
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including R(gh - mMEZE - BIREREHK
interest payments computed using contractual rates B BN ER R ) S E 8 R B E) AR
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of SEAHEERNRNEEBEME
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group it

can be required to pay:

2021
—EC--F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRFTRASR

More than  More than Carrying

Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than 31 March

on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2021

i

—E--F

—FRH —FhE MENL =A=t+-B8

REXR EmEUAT BREEUT mct REE

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

TERT TER THERT TERT TER

Trade and other payables B REMEMNRE 117,032 — — 117,032 117,032

Lease liabilities HEAE 14,797 8,504 378 23,679 23,044
Amount due to the controlling & UK % i% B% & 57 18

shareholder 4,373 = = 4,373 4,373
Loan from the controlling REERBREER

shareholder 1,705 85,901 - 87,606 85,266

137,907 94,405 378 232,690 229,715
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SR ERME

(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

Hong Kong dollars)

BHEEREEREMTIAQNTYE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (&
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELRAKE)
2020
i S
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRFTBREASTD
More than More than Carrying
Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than 31 March
on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2020
i
i S
—FRK —FpE MEN E —A=t+—~H
BER  BEMEUAT  BRENUT mEr RHEAE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FHEL TET FET FHEL TET
Trade and other payables B REMENRE 100,687 — — 100,687 100,687
Lease liabilities HE&E 21,330 1,091 — 22,421 22129
Amount due to the controlling & U % A% B% & 5 18
shareholder 2,435 — — 2,435 2,435
Loan from the controlling REERBREER
shareholder 2,183 2,183 109,980 114,346 109,165
126,635 3,274 109,980 239,889 234,416
(¢) Interest rate risk () FEEp
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future MERBESRTIAEZAFERE
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate RIBeREREMISF RS EH TR

because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from lease
liabilities and loan from the controlling shareholder
as disclosed in notes 21 and 22 respectively.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in the following
table.

BEHWRR AEEMERBREE
EEBRDRIM 212287 &8
HEAERKRABERBEEER - B
EBBRITHNERSALEBAEGAF
BEFERR AEEBTERHBDH
METAREHHRFERER - TR
AEEEREBERMNFERBMR -
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EKBEEREMIAAFE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(¢) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FE=REM(E)
2021 2020
—E--F e e S
Effective Effective
interest rate $'000 interest rate $'000
ERRA=E FERT R F = FAL
Fixed rate borrowings: BEFMEEE:
Lease liabilities HE&ARE 3.5%-6.5% 23,044  3.5%-6.5% 22,129
Loan from the controlling REERREER
shareholder 2.0% 85,266 2.0% 109,165
Total borrowings BIEX 108,310 131,294

The Group's interest-bearing financial liabilities at
fixed interest rates at the end of reporting period
are lease liabilities and loan from the controlling
shareholder that are measured at amortised cost,
and the change of market interest rate does not
expose the Group to interest rate risk. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis has been presented.

(d) Currency risk (d)
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currency giving
rise to this risk is Renminbi.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), translated using
the spot rate at the year end date. Differences
resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.

1 74 AUX International Holdings Limited / B % S BB Z BB R AR
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BEBMBRRME

(Expressed in

(CAE TR R)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL

Hong Kong dollars)

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Currency risk (Continued)

INSTRUMENTS

(d)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

BHEBEEREMTIAATE

(&

Bk E)
(i) HE%mEE (&)

Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in HKD)

H B 0 L By
(BL38 T &R R)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Renminbi Renminbi
ARHE AR
$'000 $'000
FERT FET
Cash at bank and in hand WITTFREFERS 611 14
Loan from the controlling REZERRKRRER
shareholder (85,266) (109,165)
Net exposure arising from PHREERAEM
recognised assets and ELZRRFE
liabilities (84,655) (109,151)

(iij)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the insta
change in the Group's (loss)/profit

ntaneous
after tax

(and accumulated losses) that would arise if

foreign exchange rate to which the G
significant exposure at the end of the

roup has
reporting

(i) BBEDH
TRIVREBRAE E R 2
BRFAE - MR WEHRA
& E T b B K L B Y B R R X
AHRES  ARERKKE
(R REHEB) Al RE 3R A0 BT

period had changed at that date, assuming all Rt o
other risk variables remained constant.
2021 2020
— i

(Increase)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/  decrease in loss Increase/ increase in profit
(decrease) after tax and (decrease) after tax and
in foreign in accumulated in foreign  increase/(decrease) in
exchange rate losses  exchange rate accumulated losses
BRRERER BR 1% 08 K ORt 4,/
SME BB = R ER S B B & Bk REtEE
ERH/(TR) #,/(RD) A/ (FER) #m,/ G )
$'000 $'000
TR TERT
Renminbi A R# 10% 8,466 10% (10,915)
(10)% (8,466) (100% 10,915
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

f=

7 N =1

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

(e)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ (loss)/profit after tax and
accumulated losses measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HKD at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables within the Group, if any,
which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis for 2020.

Fair value measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2021 and 2020.

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

176

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the

PREREERERIAQNTE

4

(&)

25

(d) E¥ERKE)

(i) SEE D (E)
RSSO NMERIEAZYIE
MG A EEIEE K2/
TEBEEKRMBEBER R RE
BB REHARRITERT B
BETLTHGRERNFETE -

BREE DM REINEERZ &
FEARENTERNEERR
EHRFBEASE@MBRINE R B
MemMmTE  BEEERE
BRH 2 EE A 2 B
H(WA) o kTN eEHIN
BBz VY MERBERARE
B2 EEMEEZESE -
AR —E T EHREE

T °

AFEE
AEEZRBHEKAARZERTA
CEEEEAER T -_—FNE_F
TEFEZA=Z+—BHBZRAFEESH
TR »

26 ERBEHAIRS

TEEERBAEHM

AEBTZEEEBABNTMH (B
SN FH B BENARAREER
M0 ENE TR HHESR

(e)

(a)

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is BRI T -
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
$'000 $'000
F#& T FHET
Salaries and other short-term HehEMRHEER
employee benefits ) 7.711 12,298
Retirement scheme contributions RAIRET &5k 128 148
7,839 12,446
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RAEMBBRERME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(CAE TR R)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Key management personnel remuneration
(Continued)
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see

note 7(b)).

Transactions with other related parties

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions:

26

EXEABLIRS (&
(a) ETEEEBREASHMHA)

(b)

st ATE TRCAI(R M &
7(b)) °

RHEMEBRLIZXS
SRAMBERREMEBOAWEZR
SRR - AN R T AT
THEXRRS:

2021 2020
—F_- —E-FHF
$'000 $'000
TERT FHET
Property management services KEBB T2 MEER
income from related parties AR 75 WA 71,945 64,947
Repair and maintenance expenses for &1,/ J& {i — % 78 Bt
motor vehicles paid/payable to a AERERHEERX
related party — 430

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above
transactions were carried out on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary course of business.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The property management services income from
related parties disclosed in note 26(b) includes
$56,929,000 (2020: $53,747,000) which constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Report of the directors.

In addition, repair and maintenance expenses for
motor vehicles payable/paid to a related party
disclosed in note 26(b) constituted connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as
they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1).

(c)

ARREERG LR ZTHERE
EBBRETR—MREEEKETL -

EREXZERNLETRAZER
3

b 3B RE26(b) P % BB R B BB 0D 2
Y EE IR RIFWAF » 56,929,000/
TT(ZF =& 4 : 53,747,000/ 7T) ##
B ETRABUATRRTE 2 FH5EH
BRP o EMRBFEIMATERH
BFOCREFSRETIHERERS]
— &R G -

It AN - B XK EE26(b) TR B 2 B2
NN — R TR R
EFER LR AIF14AEFIE
ZBBERS - R ARZFTR S
R 14AT6(MIRIE T2 RAKE K
FoRERRETEMRAUFBUAE
ZEERTE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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27

28

178

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

27 RDEIEHEZ MBI K

FINANCIAL POSITION

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TH
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 F#& T FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - R E L& E — 58
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARWNIKE 10 10
10 68
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H fth B 5K T8 118 252
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEW KB AT B 81,800 89,081
Cash at bank and in hand RITHERERFERE 487 1,919
82,405 91,252
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H th & < 5K 1A 4,286 2,029
Lease liabilities HESE — 60
4,286 2,089
Net current assets REBEEZFE 78,119 89,163
NET ASSETS EERE 78,129 89,231
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXARGFE 24(a)
Share capital fig A% 3,750 3,750
Reserves i 1 74,379 85,481
TOTAL EQUITY AT 78,129 89,231

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTIES

At 31 March 2021, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be
Huiri Limited and Ze Hui Limited respectively, both are
incorporated in the BVI and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zheng Jian Jiang. None of these parties produces financial
statements available for public use.
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BB ERRM T

&
i

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(PABTTERTR)

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, /nsurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

29 BE-E-—F=ZA=1+—-HLHF

FE 5 78 o e R AR SRV IE BT - HTRT
EAREENTERE

BETEZSHHEHRRAY TS
NEEBEMBIEE J&-IE%)TZT‘?EE“ (&
BUBRELERNESE  REESY) %%
BRI R EARBE—_T_—F=A=
T—REFERRERBE YRR ZENB
WARPEE - AT BRI RAEBE R
HERT

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUUF B 2 & BAE A
SHEER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BRI REEAEIR 2B HELZEAL

1 January 2022
—E-_F—HA—H

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment Proceeds before

Intended Use
BERGEEREI6R 2B - WE - BELKR

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BERGFEREIR 2IEE]  BEEH—ETENZ KT

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
BRMBREEL =

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BB R EAERZER  EHRB A TBREZ DT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements..

R - 1EREE FH 42 512 T35 A

—NFEZE_TFRYACFENE

1 January 2022
—E-_F—HA—H

1 January 2022
—E-_F—HA—H

1 January 2022
—E-_F—HA—H

1 January 2023
—E-=%—-H—H

ZKE@EEHEEZ%@ETEQE}AJEFHHHF’?Z
BHEE - 298 AEERREMZ
FEATRFAEANTEHEAMBERE
EREANTE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary
EFHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and liabilities ASEBEAFETBFENEEALEE - #
of the Group for the five financial years is as follows: ahkBEHENT:

RESULTS 4

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=1+—HLLFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--f% C—T-TF —ET-hF —T-N\F ZT—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FiET FiET FiHT FHT

Revenue Yy 302,907 339972 317,568 268,237 102,802
Profit/(loss) from operations REELET(BE) 9,444 32,122 (398) (19,077) (27,116)
Income tax expense Frig B m % (15,679) (15,953) (6,891 (4,956) (1,687)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRER),EF (8,621) 13,213 (9,635) (25,517) (28,803)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥E - -S8EBRFERER
INTERESTS

At 31 March
R=ZA=+—8H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-—& —E-TE —E-NF —E-N\F ZZE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET TAET TAET FAT
Total Assets HMEE 447,247 433,194 427,738 431,650 145,229
Total Liabilities waE 311,556 (304,820) (297,490) (279,840) (32,497)
135,691 128,374 130,248 151,810 112,732
Equity attributable to: ATAL B :
— Owners of the Company — KRREEA 135,691 128,374 130,248 151,810 112,732
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